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Annual Public Meeting 

The Trust’s Annual Public Meeting was held on 18 
September 2019 at Peterborough City Hospital.

At the Annual Public Meeting the Board of Directors 
presented the Trust’s Annual Report and Accounts  
for 2018-19. This contained our quality account,  
which outlined our performance against national  
targets and detailed our quality priorities for the 
forthcoming 12 months.

There was also a presentation from the Trust’s  
Cardiology team.

Our Governors also participated in three  
members meetings, held during the year.

Contacting the Governors

Governors can be contacted via the office of the 
Company Secretary, by telephoning 01733 677933  
or by writing to: 

The Company Secretary 
North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust
Department 404 
Peterborough City Hospital
Edith Cavell Campus
Bretton Gate
Peterborough
PE3 9GZ

Looking forward		

As a Foundation Trust we remain firmly part of the NHS, 
but we have more freedom and flexibility on how we run 
our services. The concept of a Foundation Trust rests on 
local accountability, which Governors perform a pivotal 
role in providing. 

The Council of Governors collectively binds a trust to  
its patients, service users, staff and stakeholders. 
Influencing how our health services are shaped and 
provided is achieved through our public and staff 
membership, to which the trust is accountable  
through the Council of Governors.
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CoG Public Meeting 

Exec/Non-exec 09.05.19 04.09.19 06.11.19 06.02.20

Caroline Walker 1/4 Attendance

David Pratt 0/4 Non-attendance

Kanchan Rege 1/4 Apologies 

Louise Tibbert 0/4 Not working 

Jo Bennis 0/4

Graham Wilde 2/4

Taff Gidi 3/4

Rob Hughes 4/4

Sarah Dunnett 4/4

Mike Ellwood 3/4

Gareth Tipton 2/4

Ray Harding 4/4

Beverley Shears 0/4

Mary Dowglass 3/4

Public Governor 09.05.19 04.09.19 06.11.19 06.02.20

Baron Junaid Bhatti 0/4

David Evans 2/4

Stephen Hodson 0/4

Trish Mason 3/4

Michael Simmonds 2/4

Robert Wordsworth 2/4

David Bryars 1/4

Duncan Lawson 2/4

Sue Prior 3/4

Steve Reiss 1/4

Roberta Roulstone 3/4

Amanda Buckenham 2/4

Rev Kevin Burdett 2/4

Jill Challener 1/4

Zybs Fedorowicz 1/4

Kenneth Leafe 2/4

Bob Mason 2/4

Attendance at Council of Governors meetings 2019-20
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CoG Public Meeting 

Staff Governor 09.05.19 04.09.19 06.11.19 06.02.20

Emilie Hall 3/4 Attendance

John Ellington 2/4 Non-attendance

Asif Mahmood 3/4 Apologies 

Dr Jennine Ratcliffe 2/4 Not working 

Dr Tarang Majmudar 1/4

Lorraine Davey 1/4

Nik Johnson 1/4

Partner Governor 09.05.19 04.09.19 06.11.19 06.02.20

Pamela Palmer 0/4

Cllr Tom Sanderson 0/4

Rosemary Trollope-Bellow 0/4

Cllr Wayne Fitzgerald 2/4

Margaret Robinson 0/4 

Rebecca Neno 1/4

The Trust held elections for both Public and Staff Governors during the year. Appointed Governors will take up their 
positions from 1 April 2020. The following Public and Staff Governors retired from their roles at the end of March 2020:

Public Governors:
David Bryars
Patricia Mason
Michael Simmonds
Robert Wordsworth
Dr Jill Challener

Staff Governors:
Dr Jennine Ratcliffe
Tarang Majmudar
Lorraine Davey

Partner Governors
Margaret Robinson - Healthwatch, Peterborough & Cambridgeshire
Tom Sanderson - Cambridgeshire County Council
Pamela Palmer - South Lincs County Council
Rosemary Trollope-Bellew - Lincolnshire County Council
John Gowing - Cambridgeshire County Council
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Governor Biographies 

Chairman  
Mr Robert Hughes  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to  
31 March 2021

Rob served as Chairman of the 
former Peterborough and Stamford 

Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust from 1 April 2013 
to 31 March 2017. A former Managing Director of 
Mars Food UK, he has wide experience in national and 
international strategic development, and all aspects 
of sales, marketing, manufacturing, logistics, financial 
management, mergers and acquisitions. He is a  
co-founder and Chairman of Anna’s Hope, the children’s 
brain tumour charity and a Trustee and Deputy Chair 
of Brain Tumour Research. Rob chairs the Trust’s 
PFI Assurance Committee and is a member of the 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough STP Board.

 
Public Governors Representing 
Huntingdonshire

Amanda Buckenham  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to  
31 March 2020

Amanda has worked and volunteered 
for the NHS and other health 
organisations for 24 years. She is Lay 

Chair of the Parks Maternity Voices and has been a 
Governor at Huntingdon Nursery school for 10 years. 
Amanda previously worked as a Health Care Assistant 
at Hinchingbrooke Hospital and as a Community 
Development worked for the PCT.  She is passionate 
about community engagement and manages the ‘We 
Love Hinchingbrooke Hospital because’ Facebook page, 
which has grown to more than 4,000 members.

The Rev Kevin Burdett  
Term of office: 1 July 2018 to  
1 July 2021

Reverend Burdett is Lead Governor. 
A retired church minister from 
Godmanchester, he previously served 

his community as Chairman of Fenstanton and Burwell 
Parish Councils. Born in Huntingdonshire, Reverend 
Burdett lived in Cambridgeshire for most of his life and 
has a keen interest in the county and its people. He 
chairs a national committee for the Baptist Union of 
Great Britain and is a Non-Executive Director of a local 
housing association.  He was a member of the Eastern 
Baptist Association Council for more than 10 years, and 
chaired its committee from 2008 to 2011.  

Dr Jill Challener  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to  
31 March 2020

Dr Challener spent many years 
working as Consultant Paediatrician 
at Hinchingbrooke Hospital. Her early 

career began as registrar in paediatrics when  
the hospital opened in 1983. She was appointed 
Consultant Paediatrician in 1989 and later became 
Medical Director of Huntingdon and then Cambridgeshire 
PCT, where she led major organisational change. Dr 
Challener pays tribute to her colleagues who supported 
her through training, namely Dr Richard Miles and 
Dr Martin Becker and in Community Paediatrics with 
Dr Angela Owen-Smith. Although now retired Dr 
Challener continues to work as a dedicated volunteer. 
She is passionate about art and schools. She introduced 
children’s art into the hospital and built a volunteer 
network that links the Trust with schools.  
 

Professor Zbys Fedorowicz, PhD, 
MSc D.P.H, BDS, LDS RCS (Eng) 
Term of office: 1 June 2019 to  
1 June 2022

Professor Fedorowicz is an accomplished 
consultant who works nationally and 

internationally at government and healthcare policy-maker 
level.  He interacts extensively with leaders in the scientific/
research not-for-profit sector, including the Cochrane 
Collaboration, the WHO and other eminent organisations 
across the international health spectrum. He is the leading 
advocate in the field of evidence-based medicine, has 
published a comprehensive range of scholarly works, and 
is an experienced speaker.  His clinical experience is based 
on the delivery of dental care in a range of settings, from 
the diamond mines in Namibia, oilfield desert locations  
in Saudi Arabia and Abu Dhabi, to prestigious practice  
in Bahrain.

Kenneth Leafe 
Term of office: 1 June 2019 to  
1 June 2022

After a career in the Royal Navy, Ken 
gained an MBA and worked as a 
management consultant supporting 

ambitious programs to improve service delivery in the Public 
Sector through restructuring, outsourcing and privatisation. 
From 2000 to 2012 he worked extensively overseas in 
Africa and the Caribbean on World Bank and nationally 
funded development projects with responsibility for overall 
project planning, implementation and capacity building 
to ensure long term sustainability of Government reform 
initiatives. He has lived in Huntingdonshire since 1987.
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Bob Mason 
Term of office: 1 June 2019 to  
1 June 2022

Bob has lived in Sawtry, Cambridgeshire 
since 1997. He retired from the RAF 
Police in 1999 after serving for 30 

years as a Computer Security Specialist.  He worked for 
the NHS Information Authority from 1999 to 2005 as a 
Senior Manager, where he handled computer security 
matters for the NHSnet roll out across the country.  He 
retired in 2014 and volunteered with the Cambridge 
Constabulary High-Tech Crime Unit.  He volunteers in the 
Emergency Department and Acute Assessment Unit at 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital and is a member of the Trust’s 
Capital Committee.

 
Public Governors representing 
members in Greater Peterborough

Baron Junaid Bhatti  
Term of office: 1 June 2019 to  
1 June 2022

Junaid Bhatti has been a 
Cambridgeshire resident for the last 
decade. He’s a Parish Councillor in 

Peterborough, and sits on several Scrutiny Committees 
with Peterborough City Council. He is a marketing 
and communications professional and has extensive 
experience working with governments at local and 
national level, as well as multiple STPs, CCGs, NHS 
Trusts, and health and social care providers.

David Evans  
Term of office: 1 June 2019 to  
1 June 2022

David joined the Royal Air Force in 
1967. He served in regular service  
until 2006, he then transferred to 

the RAF Full Time Reserve. He currently serves at RAF 
Cranwell as the Wing Commander, Head of Branch, 
for Engineering and Logistics within the RAF Air Cadet 
Organisation at the headquarters of a volunteer youth 
organisation of over 52,000 members. During his long 
RAF career, David has lived and worked in many places 
in the world and spent a number of years in the Middle 
East which exposed him to many different cultures.  
The experience gained in living and working in these 
diverse environments has greatly assisted in representing 
the culturally wide-ranging population encompassed by 
the Trust.   
 
 
 
 

Stephen Hodson  
Term of office: 1 June 2019 to  
1 June 2022

Stephen is a recently retired Chartered 
Surveyor and Estate Agent from 
Whittlesey. During his 40 years 

in business he has and remains very active in the 
community.  A former member of Whittlesey Round 
Table and currently a member of Rotary International, 
leading both organisations.  He was also Chair of 
Whittlesey & District Business Forum representing local 
traders.  He organised on behalf of Rotary a charity quiz 
for Life Education for Children’s Health Education for  
22 years.  
 

Trish Mason  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to  
31 March 2020

Prior to her election as Public Governor, 
Trish was a Partner Governor at PSHFT, 
representing the Friends of Stamford 

Hospital between October 2014 and March 2017. She 
is a former nurse and has worked at various hospitals 
including Stamford, Leicester Royal Infirmary, and Luton 
& Dunstable.  Trish was President of the British Ladies 
Association in Madrid, a body of 200 women who raised 
money for Spanish charities. She is an active committee 
member of the Friends of Stamford Hospital and 
volunteers at the hospital. 

Michael Simmonds  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to  
31 March 2020

Michael served as a Non-Executive Director 
at Papworth Hospital where he spent time 
interacting with the hospital’s Council 

of Governors. His background is in further education and 
medical sciences. He was a university teacher and medical 
science researcher. The patient experience is important to 
Michael, including quality of care, clinical outcomes, waiting 
times and patient safety.  

Dr Robert Wordsworth  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to  
31 March 2020

Dr Wordsworth has 30 years’ 
experience working for large 
engineering companies in technical 

management, team leadership and quality assurance. His 
responsibilities included project budgeting and delivery, 
staff reviews, supplier engagement and university liaison.  
He is currently working with a UK charity promoting 
public health in the community, has seven years’ service 
as a church trustee and is a volunteer supporting the 
Trust’s chaplaincy team. He feels passionately about 
public health and overall well-being: physical, mental, 
social and spiritual. 
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Public Governors representing members 
in Stamford and South Lincolnshire

David Bryars  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to  
31 March 2020

David has lived in South Lincolnshire 
for 30 years. Before retiring his career 
was spent in secondary education 

as a maths teacher and then as Head Teacher at a 
local comprehensive school. David’s knowledge of 
his local area and people, together with his skills as a 
communicator and educator, means he is well-equipped 
to represent the voice of the Stamford and South 
Lincolnshire public. 

Duncan Lawson  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to  
31 March 2020

Duncan was Public Governor for 
Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals 
NHS Foundation Trust from October 

2015 to March 2020.  He has lived in the Stamford area 
since 1972 and was Chair of his local surgery patient 
participation group, a member of South Lincolnshire 
combined PPG, and, until 2018, a member of the Quality 
and Patient Experience committee of the South Lincs 
CCG. These allowed him to gain a good understanding 
of the local health economy and some insight into the 
concerns of local patients.  Duncan was a Director of 
several companies, locally and overseas.

Sue Prior  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to  
31 March 2020

Sue was elected Lead Governor of 
the Council of Governors. Before 
she retired, Sue was a county 
council contracts manager for Adult 

and Children’s Social Care. She also worked in the 
aerospace industry as a national and international 
contracts negotiator. Sue is a trained volunteer adviser 
and supervisor for Citizens Advice, and Vice Chair of 
the Patient Participation Group at Lakeside Health in 
Stamford This combination of experience brings financial 
and procurement expertise, patient experience and a 
wider understanding of community issues to her role.  
Sue is also an NHS Volunteer, helping advise and support 
Social care staff in Peterborough and Cambridgeshire.  
Sue’s term of office has been extended from 1 April 
2020 to 31 March 2023.

Steve Reiss  
Term of office: 1 June 2019 to  
1 June 2022

Steve was elected public governor in 
2019. He retired as a GP partner in 
Stamford after 28 years of service and 

continues to work as a part-time GP. He has considerable 
experience of the NHS and local issues and his particular 
interest is in the future development of Stamford Hospital.

Roberta Roulstone  
Term of office: 1 June 2019 to  
1 June 2022

Roberta was elected to represent 
members living in Stamford and South 
Lincolnshire. She lives in Thurlby and  

is a retired specialist midwife.  For the past 20 years 
Roberta has worked for the NHS in a number clinical  
and strategic roles. She chairs her local Patient 
Participation Group and is a Governor observer on  
the Quality Assurance Committee.  

Staff Governors representing staff  
at Hinchingbrooke Hospital

Dr Nik Johnson 
Term of office: 14 June 2019 to 
14 June 2022

Dr Johnson works as a children’s doctor 
at Hinchingbrooke Hospital.  He has 
worked closely with hospital staff 
across the Trust’s geographical areas 

and Cambridgeshire, where he engages with public 
health bodies for mental health, social care, education 
and charity. Dr Johnson has combined clinical and 
managerial experience of planning and delivering high 
quality coordinated health care. His work across the 
communities enables him to meet, help and support 
people from all walks of life.  

Dr Tarang Majmudar  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to 
31 March 2020

Dr Majmudar has worked at 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital as a Consultant 
Obstetrician and Gynaecologist since 
2008.  He is the Associate Divisional 

Director for the Trust’s Maternity, Gynaecology and 
Breast Units and spends the majority of his time 
providing clinical care as service lead for Colposcopy 
and the Gynaecology Cancer Unit at Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital.  He was Chair of the Medical Advisory 
Committee and the Local Negotiating Committee and 
is passionate about representing the best interests of 
Medical Staff.
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Staff Governors representing staff 
at Peterborough City Hospital

Mr John Ellington  
Deputy Lead Governor 
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to  
31 March 2020

John has worked for the Trust for more 
than 40 years. The majority of his career 
has been spent in a clinical role within 

the theatre department in anaesthetics. He went on to 
become a Medical Equipment Manager in 2010 and in 
2018 became the Trust’s Medical Equipment Manager.  
He was the relocation lead for the Theatres, Day Surgery 
and Anaesthetics when it moved to the newly-built 
Peterborough City Hospital in 2010 and is well-known 
in the Trust for his commitment to supporting staff and 
representing their views and concerns with the Board.

Ms Emilie Hall 
Term of office: 1 June 2019 to 

 1 June 2022

Emilie is a Paediatric Staff Nurse. She 
has worked for the Trust for seven 
years, starting as a secretary in the renal 
team. Inspired by her clinical colleagues, 

Emilie joined the Acute Psychiatric Liaison Service and 
moved into her first patient-care role as a Health Care 
Assistant in Children’s Services, going on to qualify as a 
children’s Nurse.  Emilie has combined her clinical and 
non-clinical experience to deliver high quality coordinated 
health care. She is keen to promote a positive and 
proactive working culture and encourages staff to share 
ideas to influence improvements across the Trust.

Mr Asif Mahmood  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2020

Asif is the Pathology Specimen 
Reception Manager at Peterborough 
City Hospital, having worked for the 
Pathology Department for more than 

15 years. He is passionate about the Trust and believes 
in its values and principles. Asif is keen to be part of 
ongoing improvements at the Trust. 

Staff Governor representing staff  
at Stamford Hospital

Dr Jennine Ratcliffe 
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2020

Dr Ratcliffe was the Trust’s Consultant 
in Anaesthesia and Pain Medicine 
from 2006 and Clinical Lead for 
the Pain Service between 2012 and 

2017. During this time she expanded the department, 
developed new care pathways with Primary Care 
and built strong relationships with Commissioners in 
readiness for STP planning. The Pain Department at 
Stamford Hospital is a regional specialty service where 
the team treat more than 10,000 patients a year.  Dr 
Ratcliffe is Clinical Advisor to the Stamford Hospital 
Redevelopment Committee and sits on the Stamford 
Operational Strategy Group in her Governor role.  

Partner Governors

Liz Ball - South Lincolnshire CCG  
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to  
31 March 2020

Liz has worked for the NHS for more 
than 30 years. Before joining South 
Lincolnshire CCG she was Deputy Chief 
Nurse for United Lincolnshire Hospitals 

and led on a number of initiatives that have improved 
patient safety and quality.  She is committed to the delivery 
of care to patients with kindness, care and compassion. 

Margaret Robinson – Healthwatch 
Cambs & Peterborough 
Term of office: 5 July 2017  
– 31 March 2020

Margaret is Vice Chair of Healthwatch 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough and 
a member of the Quality Assurance 

Committee. She has worked as a librarian and in nature 
conservation and community improvement. Before 
retiring she served as Chair of an HMRC regulatory body 
and was a Director of Healthwatch Peterborough before 
the merger with Healthwatch Cambridgeshire. 

Cllr John Gowing - Cambridgeshire 
County Council 
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to 
31 March 2020

Cllr Gowing retired in 2010 and was 
elected as a March Town Councillor in 
2015 and a County Councillor in 2017. 

He has worked in the electronic and computer systems 
industries and spent 13 years teaching design  
and technology.    
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Cllr Wayne Fitzgerald,  
Peterborough City Council 
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2020

Cllr Fitzgerald has served the Trust as 
a Partner Governor since 2017. He is 
Deputy Leader & Cabinet Member for 

Adult Social Care - Integrated Health and Public Health 
for Peterborough City Council.

Cllr Ray Wootten,  
Lincolnshire County Council 
Term of office: 1 April 2017 to 31 
March 2020        

Cllr Wootten has served as a Councillor 
on South Kesteven District Council 
(SKDC) since 2007 and from 2009 on 

the County Council. During that time he has been Mayor 
of Grantham, Chairman of the County Council and 
Chairman of the District Council.  He is currently sitting 
on the Lincolnshire Health Scrutiny Committee and is 
Chairman of the SKDC Communities and Wellbeing 
Committee. 
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Foundation Trust Membership

Social, community and human  
rights issues

Good engagement with our patients and the wider 
community is a key priority for the Trust, helping us 
understand what people need and expect from the 
services we provide. We use a variety of ways to  
engage with the communities we serve. 

Foundation Trust membership		

Membership of North West Anglia NHS Foundation 
Trust is divided into three constituency areas, based 
on the location of our three main hospital sites and 
the catchments they serve in Greater Peterborough, 
Huntingdonshire, and Stamford and South Lincolnshire. 
Public governors are elected from our membership to 
represent our members in each constituency.

There are six public governors each for the Greater 
Peterborough and Huntingdonshire constituency, 
and five for the Stamford and South Lincolnshire 
constituency. They sit on the Trust’s Council of 
Governors, which meets four times a year in public.

Who can be a member?

Public  
Public membership of the Trust is open to anyone aged 
16 or over who lives in the Trust’s catchment area. 
All Non-Executive Directors and public governors are 
required to be public members of the organisation and 
staff governors are required to be staff members.

Staff  
All permanent employees of the Trust are automatically 
made members upon commencement of employment, 
with the choice to opt out of the scheme if they wish. 
As well as permanent staff, those who are on short-term 
or temporary contracts lasting 12 months or more are 
also eligible for staff membership. Trust members are 
expected to adhere to the principles of NHS Foundation 
Trust status.

The Trust also expects members to be committed to  
its values.

Membership services 

Membership services are provided by the Trust’s 
Communications Department, which is responsible for 
engagement with Trust members as well as recruitment 
and retention. This is delivered in collaboration with the 
Trust Governors, particularly those who sit on the Trust’s 
Membership Engagement Committee.

The Trust communicates with members on a regular 
basis, primarily through dedicated articles in its quarterly 
magazine, The Pulse, but also via email to members who 
have indicated they wish to be contacted in this way.

In addition, the Trust holds members’ meetings four 
times a year. This includes our Annual Public Meeting. 
Members’ Meetings in 2019-20 have been held on 
rotation at each of our three main acute sites and have 
seen an increase in attendance. Topics covered this year 
have included the redevelopment of Stamford Hospital, 
tackling urinary incontinence and managing Diabetes

Membership numbers

Public membership statistics as at  
31 March 2020 

* Data not available 

31 March 2019 31 March 2020

Public 
membership

8,127 7,927

Staff 
membership

6,230 6,705

Total 14,357 14,632

Public 
members 

2019-20

Age 16 0

17-21 108

22+ 5984

Undisclosed 1835

Ethnicity White 5354

Mixed 49

Asian or 

Asian British
326

Black or 

Black British
54

Other 47

Undisclosed 2097

Gender Male 2972

Female 4677

Trans-gender *

Undisclosed 278

Recorded disability *
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Developing our membership 

We plan to further develop and grow membership 
services across all constituencies in 2019-20. This includes 
targeting more members of the public who are under 
40, plus increasing the number of members of ethnic 
communities, to ensure a more accurate representation 
of the diverse communities the Trust serves. Regular 
membership activities are likely to be adjusted to meet 
social distancing requirements during the ongoing 
Covid-19 pandemic.

Contact details:
Members can get in touch by:  

Telephone: 
01733 678024

Email: 
nwangliaft.membership@nhs.net 

Website:	
www.nwangliaft.nhs.uk/join-our-team/membership 

Members can also contact the Council of Governors 
or Board of Directors regarding general issues, at the 
following address.

c/o Company Secretary
Department 404
Peterborough City Hospital
Edith Cavell Campus
Bretton Gate
Peterborough
PE3 9GZ

All members and patients are encouraged to use the 
Trust’s standard procedures if they have any concerns 
or complaints regarding services that they, or a friend 
or relative, has received.  Any initial queries received on 
individual treatment will be diverted through this route.  
This is to ensure a consistent, high-quality approach is 
taken to tackling individual patient care issues in line 
with best practice, Care Quality Commission registration 
requirements and to ensure that all issues are captured 
and reflected in figures for individual service areas.

The Trust’s Patient Advice and Liaison Service can be 
contacted on 01733 673405.

As a nurse who has worked in the  
hospital for many years – I cannot fault  
the care given to my partner during his 

recent stay in hospital with a serious 
condition. From the paramedics to the ED 
and AAU staff – all have been fab – thank 

you from the bottom of my heart.
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Disclosures

Annual Report and Accounts

The Directors consider the annual report and accounts, 
taken as a whole, are fair, balanced and understandable 
and provide the information necessary for patients, 
regulators and stakeholders to assess the Trust’s 
performance, business model and strategy.

‘Fit and Proper’ Persons Test

Requirements are included in the eligibility criteria for 
Directors and Governors regarding the need to meet the 
‘fit and proper’ persons test described in the provider 
licence and incorporated into the Trust’s constitution.  
Directors and Governors are required to confirm that 
they meet these requirements on an annual basis.  

Accounts

The accounts have been prepared under the direction 
of NHS Improvement and in accordance with the 
requirements of the National Health Service Act 2006.  
The accounts show, and give, a true and fair view of 
the NHS Foundation Trust’s income and expenditure, 
gains and losses, cash flow and financial state at the 
end of the financial year, and meet, as directed by NHS 
Improvement, the requirements of the NHS Foundation 
Trust Annual Reporting Manual and comply with the cost 
allocation and charging guidance issued by HM Treasury.

A statement of the Chief Executive’s responsibilities as 
the Accounting Officer and requirements in preparing 
the accounts is included at page X of the accounts; and 
a statement of Directors’ responsibilities in respect of 
the accounts is included at page X of the accounts (See 
Section 2).

Accounting policies for pensions and 
other retirement benefits

Accounting policies for pensions and other retirement 
benefits are set out in note 1 to the accounts. Details of 
senior employees’ remuneration can be found on page 
52 in the remuneration report.

Regulatory Ratings 

As a Foundation Trust, we are regulated by NHS 
Improvement, the sector regulator of health services 
in England.  NHS Improvement’s role is to protect and 
promote the interests of patients by ensuring that the 
whole sector works for their benefit. NHS Improvement 
promotes the provision of services which are effective, 
efficient and economical and which maintain or improve 
their quality.

Duty of Candour

The NHS provides effective healthcare to millions of 
people every year. Although the majority of these people 
are treated safe and effectively, there is a risk associated 
with each treatment and evidence shows that things will, 
and do, go wrong leading to some people being harmed 
no matter how professional and dedicated staff are.

The statutory requirement to implement Duty of 
Candour (DoC) was introduced in December 2014 and 
became part of the CQC’s registration requirements. The 
intention of this regulation is to ensure that providers 
are open and transparent with people who use services 
and other ‘relevant persons’ (people acting lawfully on 
their behalf) in general in relation to care and treatment. 
It also sets out some specific requirements that providers 
must follow when things go wrong with care and 
treatment, including informing people about the 
incident, providing reasonable support, providing truthful 
information and an apology when things go wrong.

Freedom To Speak Up

A statement regarding freedom to speak up is included 
in the Staff Engagement section of the Workforce Report 
on page 61.

Equality and diversity and  
human rights

Trust compliance with statutory Mandatory Equality and 
Diversity training for 2019-20 was 93.55% of all Trust 
employees against a target of 90%. The Trust provides a 
range of policies and schemes to promote equality and 
diversity across all aspects of our services and throughout 
our employment practice.

Control measures are in place to ensure that all the 
organisation’s obligations under equality, diversity and 
human rights legislation are complied with. 
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Governance Standards 

Licence

North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust is a public 
benefit corporation formed on 1 April 2004 pursuant 
to Section 6 of the Health and Social Care (Community 
Health and Standards) Act 2003. NHS Improvement 
established the Trust under terms of authorisation as 
one of the first 10 NHS organisations to achieve NHS 
Foundation Trust status. The original enabling legislation 
has been superseded by Part 2, Chapter 5 of the NHS 
Act 2006 and the regime was changed under the  
Health and Social Care Act 2012 to replace the terms  
of authorisation with a licence.  

The licence sets out a range of conditions that the 
Trust must meet so that it plays its part in continually 
improving the effectiveness and efficiency of NHS  
health care services, to meet the needs of patients  
and taxpayers today and in the future.

There are nine general conditions contained within 
the licence, covering areas such as the provision and 
publication of information, payment of fees, fit and 
proper persons requirements, and a requirement  
for providers to be registered with the Care  
Quality Commission. 

Continuity of services conditions ensure that providers  
of key NHS-funded services required by local 
commissioners (Commissioner Requested Services)  
meet certain conditions, so that if they get into  
very serious financial difficulty, NHS Improvement can 
step in and ensure the services can continue to be 
provided on a sustainable basis. 

The Trust is required to act in accordance with  
the conditions of the licence, which includes:

The Oversight Framework issued by NHS Improvement 
on 30 September 2016;  

•	 The NHS Foundation Trust Code of Governance  
re-issued by Monitor (NHS Improvement) in 
December 2013;

•	 National standards of care as required by registration 
with the Care Quality Commission registration;

•	 The duty to cooperate with other NHS and local 
authority bodies;

•	 The need to meet Connecting for Health information 
governance standards;

•	 The need to participate in local and national 
emergency planning and provision;

•	 Terms and conditions of the contracts agreed 
for the provision of services with local Clinical 
Commissioning Groups (which incorporate 
requirements for national service targets).

NHS Oversight Framework

NHS England and NHS Improvement’s NHS Oversight 
Framework provides the framework for overseeing 
providers and identifying potential support needs.  
The framework looks at five themes:

•	 Quality of care;

•	 Finance and use of resources;

•	 Operational performance;

•	 Strategic change;

•	 Leadership and improvement capability (well-led).

Segmentation

Based on information from these themes, providers are 
segmented from 1 to 4, where ‘4’ reflects providers 
receiving the most support, and ‘1’ reflects providers 
with maximum autonomy. A Foundation Trust will only 
be in segments 3 or 4 where it has been found to be in 
breach or suspected breach of its licence.

This segmentation information is the Trust’s position as 
at 16 April 2020. Current segmentation information for 
NHS trusts and foundation trusts is published on the NHS 
Improvement website.

The Trust is currently in Segment 2. The Trust is not 
subject to any regulatory action. This segmentation 

Segment Description

1 Providers with maximum autonomy 
- no potential support needs identified 
across our five themes – lowest level of 
oversight and expectation that provider 
will support providers in other segments

2 Providers offered targeted support  
- potential support needed in one or more 
of the five themes, but not in breach of 
licence (or equivalent for NHS trusts)  
and/or formal action is not needed

3 Providers receiving mandated support 
for significant concerns – the provider is 
in actual/suspected breach of the licence 
(or equivalent for NHS trusts)

4 Special measures − the provider is in 
actual/suspected breach of its licence (or 
equivalent for NHS trusts) with very serious/
complex issues that mean that they are in 
special measures
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information is the Trust’s position as at 27 April 2020. Current segmentation information for NHS Trusts and Foundation 
Trusts is published on the NHS Improvement website.

The Trust’s performance is outlined below:  

Regulatory Ratings 2019-20

Risk Ratings Annual Plan Q1: Apr to Jun Q2: Jul to Sep Q3: Oct to Dec Q4: Jan to Mar

Single Oversight  
Framework Segmentation1  
2019-20

2 2 2 2 2

1Rated 1-4, where 1 represents the lowest risk and 4 the highest

Risk Ratings Annual Plan Q1: Apr to Jun Q2: Jul to Sep Q3: Oct to Dec Q4: Jan to Mar

Single Oversight  
Framework Segmentation1  
2018-19

2 2 2 2 2

The Trust’s performance for 2018-19 is below:

Regulatory Ratings 2018-19

1Rated 1-4, where 1 represents the lowest risk and 4 the highest

Finance and use of resources
The finance and use of resources theme is based on the scoring of five measures from ‘1’ to ‘4’, where ‘1’ reflects the 
strongest performance. These scores are then weighted to give an overall score. Given that finance and use of resources 
is only one of the five themes feeding into the NHS Oversight Framework, the segmentation of the trust disclosed above 
might not be the same as the overall finance score here.

Area Metric 2019-20 scores 2018-19 scores

Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1 Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

Financial

Sustainability

Capital Service Capacity 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Liquidity 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Financial Efficiency I&E Margin 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4

Financial

Controls

Distance From Financial Plan 1 1 1 1 4 4 1 1

Agency Spend 2 2 2 2 3 3 4 4

Overall scoring 3 3 3 3 4 4 3 3
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Regulatory Action 

Enhanced Quality Governance Reporting 
Arrangements are in place to ensure quality governance 
and quality are discussed in more detail within the 
annual governance statement.

Code of Governance

The Code of Governance is best practice guidance 
and is designed to assist NHS Foundation Trust boards 
in improving their governance practices by bringing 
together the best practice of public and private sector 
corporate governance. 

North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust has applied 
the principles on the NHS Foundation Trust Code of 
Governance on a comply or explain basis. The NHS 
Foundation Trust Code of Governance, most recently 
revised in Jul 2014, is based on the principles of the 
UK Corporate Governance Code issued in 2012. This 
code was refreshed in July 2018. The revised code and 
its associated guidance did not come into effect until 
January 2019.

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to  
confirm that the Trust complies with the provisions  
of the Code or, where it does not, to provide an 
explanation which justifies departure from the Code  
in the particular circumstances. 

Information Governance 

The Data Security & Protection (DSP) Toolkit replaced  
the Information Governance Toolkit on 1 April 2018.  
This links to the National Data Guardian’s 10 Data 
Security Standards:

•	 Personal Confidential Data

•	 Staff Responsibilities

•	 Training

•	 Managing Data Access

•	 Process Reviews

•	 Responding To Incidents

•	 Continuity Planning

•	 Unsupported Systems

•	 IT Protection

•	 Accountable Suppliers

and the National Cyber Security Centre’s 10 Steps  
to Cyber Security:

•	 Risk Management Regime

•	 Secure Configuration

•	 Network Security

•	 Managing User Privileges

•	 User Education & Awareness

•	 Incident Management

•	 Malware Protection

•	 Monitoring

•	 Removable Media Controls

•	 Home and Mobile Working

The Data Security & Protection (DSP) Toolkit is an 
online tool that enables organisations to measure their 
performance against data security and information 
governance requirements which reflect legal rules and 
Department of Health policy.

By assessing itself against the standard, and implementing 
actions to address shortcomings identified through use  
of the DPST, the Trust will be able to reduce the risk of a 
data breach.

Result

An Internal Audit of the (DPST) progress during 
November 2019 delivered a ‘Satisfactory rating’. A 
limited audit of security aspects is currently in progress, 
prior to a wider audit later in 2020 following some 
reconfiguration of the network.

The Trust’s external auditors were provided with evidence 
to support assurance around the supporting IT processes 
for the financial systems; they have subsequently 
confirmed that this is satisfactory.  

There were 10 recommendations from the Information 
Governance audit, the majority of which have now been 
implemented with plans put in place to ensure the others 
are completed in the short term.

Our DSP Toolkit submission for 2019-20 has been 
completed.

Current Information Governance 
Issues and Future Planning

Staff errors continue to be the most common cause of 
information governance incidents.  

Staff are encouraged to check all patient details for 
example incoming patient information, clinical codes, 
and email addresses. This is important as the Trust deals 
with the most sensitive patient personal data, known as 
‘Special Category Data’ under General Data Protection 
Regulation (GDPR).

The Information Governance Manager has developed a 
campaign with Communications colleagues regarding 
what is called ‘The Two Second Rule’. This campaign’s 
focus is on asking all staff to take a couple of extra 
seconds to check details on postal addresses, email 
addresses, clinical outcome codes and other patient 
information. The Information Governance Manager has 
added enhanced data quality aspects to the mandatory 
training focussing on its importance.
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On a positive note, the Trust’s training compliance has 
risen from 73% to 88% in the last year by adding 
additional face-to-face sessions across all sites and 
bespoke briefings for departments. During walkabouts, 
the Information Governance Team have found that data 
protection considerations are, on the whole, included in 
all actions regarding patients.

The Trust will be revising Information Governance 
training this year to include video demonstrations of the 
type of data protection breaches most prevalent in an 
NHS environment.

Work will continue during 2020-21 to simplify processes 
and guidance documents and raise awareness as follows:

•	 Continue to offer face-to-face training sessions 
across the Trust encouraging staff to ask questions 
on what may be concerning them.

•	 Offer of bespoke training sessions to departments  
as part of their training days.

•	 Working together with IT colleagues to simplify  
risk management processes. This is key in identifying 
what information assets we hold in order to  
take appropriate safeguarding measures – a  
GDPR requirement.

•	 Ensuring continued GDPR and DPA18 compliance 
following EU exit and incorporation of any  
changes into policies and guidance documents.

•	 Ongoing enforcement of individual duties to protect 
and safeguard patient, staff and commercial data

•	 Working together with the Communications Team, 
PALS and Complaints departments on promoting 
preventative measures to reduce the risk of data 
protection breaches and managing any issues quickly 
and effectively. 

Caroline Walker
Chief Executive
22 June 2020 
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Annual Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for 
maintaining a sound system of internal control that 
supports the achievement of the NHS Foundation 
Trust’s policies, aims and objectives, while safeguarding 
the public funds and departmental assets for which 
I am personally responsible, in accordance with the 
responsibilities assigned to me. I am also responsible for 
ensuring that the NHS Foundation Trust is administered 
prudently and economically and that resources are 
applied efficiently and effectively. I also acknowledge my 
responsibilities as set out in the NHS Foundation Trust 
Accounting Officer Memorandum.  

The Trust’s Standing Orders and Scheme of Delegation 
outline the accountability arrangements and scope  
of responsibility of the Board, Executive Directors and 
the organisation’s officers. The Board has been fully 
involved in agreeing the strategic priorities of the Trust, 
with the most important priorities being those set out 
in the Trust’s Annual Plan and Board objectives, against 
which the Board submits regular reports to the Council 
of Governors.

The purpose of the system of  
internal control 		

The system of internal control is designed to manage 
risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all 
risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives; it 
can therefore only provide reasonable and not absolute 
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal 
control is based on an ongoing process designed to 
identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of 
the policies, aims and objectives of North West Anglia 
NHS Foundation Trust, to evaluate the likelihood of 
those risks being realised and the impact should they be 
realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and 
economically. The system of internal control has been 
in place in North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust for 
the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date of 
approval of the annual report and accounts. 

Capacity to handle risk 

As Chief Executive, I have overall responsibility for risk. 
The responsibility for risk management processes is 
delegated to the Chief Nurse, with Clinical and Executive 
Directors taking responsibility for specific risk areas 
within their Divisions.  

The Audit Committee monitors assurance processes  
and seeks internal audit assurance on the risk 
management process. This is in order to provide 
independent assurance to the Board of Directors that 
risks are being properly identified and appropriate 
controls are in place.  Partial assurance was received 
from the audit for 2019-20.  Work is continuing with 
the established Risk Task and Finish Group to embed 
priorities identified in the audit.

Executive Directors, personally and collectively,  
review assurances against strategic objectives within  
their remit, on a monthly basis as part of the Board 
Assurance Framework. They ensure action is taken to 
address gaps in controls and proactively identify  
evidence of positive assurance.

In response to the findings of the Care Quality 
Commission in 2018, the Trust established a Task 
and Finish Group chaired by the Chair of the Audit 
Committee to review the Trust’s risk management 
systems and processes in line with best practice. 

The internal auditors acknowledged the work 
undertaken by the Risk Task and Finish Group.  
As detailed in the Head of Internal Audit Opinion, 
a number of areas were identified where further 
improvements need to be made. The Trust has  
extended the Task and Finish Group until December 
2020 to continue to drive through the remaining work. 

The Task and Finish Group reports to the Trust’s Audit 
Committee, which provides a key forum through which 
the Trust’s Non-Executive Directors bring independent 
judgement to bear on issues of risk management and 
performance. The constructive interface between the 
Audit Committee and the Risk Task and Finish Group, 
supports the effectiveness of the Trust’s systems of 
internal controls.  

A range of staff lead on the implementation of risk 
management across the Trust. This includes specialists  
in quality governance, information governance, 
corporate governance, health and safety, business  
and emergency planning.

The responsibility for risk management is embedded 
across all levels in the Trust; from Board members, 
through Clinical Directors, to all managers and staff.  
Named directors have specific responsibilities and 
accountability for risk, and these are laid out in the 
Trust’s Strategic Risk Management Framework, which 
covers clinical and non-clinical risk, together with the 
responsibilities for all staff and management.

The mandatory corporate induction programme includes 
information concerning both clinical and non-clinical 
risk and the Trust’s approach to managing risk and 
maximising quality in patient care. In addition, a range 
of ongoing risk management training is provided to 
staff and there are policies in place which describe roles 
and responsibilities in relation to the identification, 
management and control of risk. Such training covers 
requirements for the safe delivery of services, proper  
use of equipment and wider aspects of management, 
health and safety and quality assurance. 
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The Trust has arrangements in place to ensure that 
we learn from good practice through a range of 
mechanisms, including clinical supervision, reflective 
practice, individual reviews, appraisal and performance 
management, continuing professional development, 
clinical audit and application of evidence-based practice.

While the Trust has established processes for learning 
from incidents and patient feedback, the focus of our 
risk management approach is to proactively identify  
and avoid risks rather than simply react to risks that  
have materialised.

Reduction of risk and maintenance of quality are 
promoted by reinforcing a culture of openness 
and transparency and encouraging staff to identify 
opportunities to learn from patient feedback and 
improve the care and services we provide.

The risk and control framework

Risk is assessed at all levels in the organisation, from the 
Board of Directors to individual wards and departments. 
This ensures that both strategic and operational risks are 
identified and addressed.

The Board of Directors retains responsibility for 
reviewing financial and operational performance reports 
addressing, as required, emerging areas of financial and 
operational risk, gaps in control, gaps in assurance and 
actions being taken to address these issues.

The Board of Directors meets bi-monthly in public and 
at every meeting it receives an Integrated Performance 
Report (IPR) which details risk, financial and performance 
issues and, where required, the action being taken 
to reduce identified significant and high risks.  This 
reporting to the Board of Directors is supported through 
the Trust’s governance structure, in particular through 
the Board committees and the Hospital Management 
Committee. The Board regularly receives and reviews the 
Trust’s risk register, which summarises all of the high and 
significant risks on the register.

The level of risk that the Trust is willing to take (risk 
appetite) is managed through a structured framework  
of risk assessment and appropriate escalation. The Board 
reviewed its risk appetite during 2019-20.

The Board receives regular reports from each of  
its committees. 

The Audit Committee provides an independent and 
objective view of the Trust’s internal control environment 
and the systems and processes by which the Trust  
leads, directs and controls its functions in order to 
achieve organisational objectives, safety and the  
quality of services.

The Strategic Development Committee supports the 
Board of Directors by advising on key developments to 
support both the strategic development and business 
objectives of the organisation.

Quality is embedded in the Trust’s overall strategy. 
The Trust’s Quality Report includes national and local 
priorities with measurable quality improvement targets 
and deadlines. Quality targets are linked to divisions. 
The Trust’s performance against the quality priorities is 
included in the Trusts Quality report which is reviewed 
monthly by the Board. 
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High Level Risks

The key high-level financial and non-financial risks faced by North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust, both in-year and in 
the future, are as follows:

Risk ID Risk Description Risk Score

101873 Loss of Mains Power to PCH and SRH buildings 20

102223 HH: Patient safety risk due to theatre and radiology air handling plant room 20

102278 Hinchingbrooke: FAC040 V3 Legionella – Management and Technical Control 20

102911 HH: Heating System Beyond Economical life and prone to failure due to lack of 
maintenance and capital investment in the past 16

102997 Potential clinical risk due to delays in the PCI pathway for NWAFT patients 20

102920 CCTV at Hinchingbrooke Hospital 16

103090 Trust continuing to breach 2019-20 Annual target ceiling of C diff cases causing 
potential harm to patients 20

103091 Trust-wide Microbiology cover inadequate 20

101952 Over reliance of Medical Locum usage (Emergency and Medicine) 16

101821 Potential for poor outcomes of care for Ophthalmic patients due to delay in booking 
appointments, diagnosis and treatment 20

102889 Insufficient medical cover for critical care services at Hinchingbrooke Hospital 16

102972 Clinical risk in respiratory medicine due to Consultant vacancies 16

103045 Delayed or failed Cardio-respiratory out-patient follow ups at HH 16

349 Insufficient numbers of radiologist to maintain a core service 20

102751 Delayed M1 Major Imaging equipment replacement program 20

102958 Cervical screening pathway breaches and errors due to lack of dedicated administrator 
at Hinchingbrooke 16

102891 Missing the window for active treatment for urology patients risking inability to offer 
curative treatment and premature death 20

The Trust has mitigating actions in place to minimise the 
potential impact of these risks so far as possible, with the 
impact of these assessed through reports to the Board 
and in particular the metrics set out in the monthly 
Integrated Performance Report.

North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust seeks to reduce 
risk as far as possible; however, delivering healthcare 
carries inherent risks that cannot always be eradicated 
completely.  The Trust seeks assurance that controls 
continue to be monitored for risks that cannot be 
reduced any further.  On this basis, risks are tolerated in 
line with an organisational risk appetite.

Board Assurance Framework

The Board Assurance Framework (BAF) ensures the 
Trust’s performance against its strategic objectives is 
monitored and managed; resulting in targets being met, 
objectives achieved, and good outcomes for patients.  
Where appropriate, objectives may be modified with 
agreement of the Trust Board to ensure objectives 
remain relevant to the ongoing requirements of the Trust 
throughout the year. 

Threats to the delivery of the Trust’s Strategic Objectives 
are recorded in detail in the Board assurance Framework.  
The framework document also details the actions to be 
taken to provide additional assurance and to counter the 
identified threats

There is a defined process for the BAF to be subject 
to regular review by the Board of Directors, Board 
committees and Hospital Management Committee.

All high and significant risks associated with the quality 
of care delivery are reviewed by the Quality Assurance 
Committee, with specialist committee meetings, such 
as information security, also reviewing relevant risks.  
Key external stakeholders are engaged with the risk 
management and control framework, with local Clinical 
Commissioning Groups reviews and links to Care Quality 
Commission assessment and assurance through the 
reporting framework to NHS Improvement.

A DATIX risk management system is used to capture 
adverse events; outcomes of adverse event reporting 
includes considering any inherent risks that need to be 
addressed and the engagement of key stakeholders by 
reporting adverse events and by adopting the duty of 
candour to inform patients.
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The Trust’s Quality Strategy and Quality Governance 
Framework set the direction through which quality is 
managed and assured in the Trust.  Risk management is 
a key element of this framework, which brings together 
the Trust’s vision for quality (right care; first time; every 
time) with national and Trust roles and responsibilities, 
Trust strategic objectives, risk management, capabilities 
and structures and processes.

The Chief Nurse and the Deputy Company Secretary 
support the directorates by providing specialist advice 
on identifying and assessing risks and work with them 
to facilitate risk mitigation plans through training, 
education and other individual support.  

Involvement of public stakeholders

The Trust serves a wide and diverse community which 
encompasses Peterborough, South Lincolnshire, parts 
of Cambridgeshire, Norfolk, Northamptonshire and 
Leicestershire. It also works with local authorities and 
clinical commissioning groups. Given these complexities, 
there is a strong desire to work closely with the local 
community to provide coherent and effective services.

The Trust provides information and assurance to the 
public on its performance against its principal risks and 
objectives in a number of different ways including:

•	 North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust had 
approximately 14,632 public and staff members  
as at the end of March 2020. These are represented 
by a Council of Governors that comprises public, 
staff and partner representatives.

•	 The Council of Governors receives regular updates 
on the status of the Board objectives and uses 
this, along with the ratings by NHS Improvement 
(Monitor) and the CQC, to hold the Board to  
account for its performance. 

•	 In addition to the formal meetings of the Council  
of Governors, joint workshops are held with the 
Board where there is an opportunity to discuss  
and challenge performance and the priorities for  
the organisation. 

•	 Consultation with the public and organisational 
stakeholders is undertaken in developing new 
services and where key changes are proposed  
to existing services which may impact upon  
them, with communications plans supporting  
all such developments.

•	 As part of their duties to represent the public and 
the Trust membership, the Council of Governors is 
developing methods of engagement with members 
and the public including members meetings.

Compliance with CQC

An inspection team from the Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) undertook an inspection at the Trust on 30 and 
31 July 2019.  This comprised all core services at the 
Peterborough City Hospital site with the exception 
of Medicine, one core service at the Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital site and all four core services at Stamford and 
Rutland Hospital.  

The specific core services inspected at each site were:

Peterborough City Hospital:

•	 Urgent and Emergency Care

•	 Surgery

•	 Critical Care 

•	 Maternity

•	 Services for Children and Young People

•	 End of Life Care

•	 Outpatients

•	 Diagnostic Imaging

Hinchingbrooke Hospital:

•	 Services for Children and Young People

Stamford and Rutland Hospital:

•	 Urgent and Emergency Care

•	 Medical Care (including older people’s care)

•	 Surgery

•	 Outpatients

In addition, an inspection of our ‘Use of Resources’ was 
carried out on 2 August 2019 and a Well-Led inspection 
of the Trust was carried out on 3 and 4 September 2019. 

Following the inspection, the Trust retained its overall 
rating of ‘Requires Improvement’. This was published 
in December 2019. The rating for Peterborough 
City Hospital went down from ‘Good’ to ‘Requires 
Improvement’ overall; however both Hinchingbrooke 
Hospital and Stamford and Rutland Hospital 
both retained their previous ratings of  ‘Requires 
Improvement’ and ‘Good’ respectively.  

The deterioration in the rating for Peterborough City 
Hospital was extremely disappointing, particularly with 
the ‘Inadequate’ ratings received in the Well-Led domain 
within Maternity and Critical Care. However, it was 
pleasing to receive the rating of ‘Outstanding’ for Well-
Led in Diagnostic Imaging.  

Six specific areas of good practice were highlighted 
in the report. These were within the Urgent and 
Emergency Care and Diagnostic Imaging core services at 
Peterborough City Hospital and the Surgery core service 
at Stamford and Rutland Hospital.

The narrative of the report provides detailed information 
across all services, highlighting both good practice and 
areas where the Trust should consider improvements. 
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The inspection team made 38 recommendations that 
the Trust must adhere to and 21 recommendations 
that it should address. The Trust has a comprehensive 
action plan for monitoring the implementation of the 
recommendations in line with timelines agreed with 
CQC. A number of actions have already been completed.  
The Trust’s CQC steering group and Quality Assurance 
Committee provide assurance to the Trust Board on the 
progress against action plan. 

Work has continued to drive the development of  
quality care across the Trust with the re-launch of the 
‘Good to Outstanding in every way’ organisational 
development programme. This is in line with the Trust’s 
ambition ‘To make life in our hospitals truly outstanding 
for patients, staff, volunteers and visitors’. This consists 
of five work streams, one of which is ‘Outstanding 
Health and Wellbeing’.  

One of the priorities within the Outstanding Patient 
Care work stream is to continue the roll-out of the ward 
accreditation scheme ‘CREWS’, which is aligned to the 
five CQC lines of enquiry. This will include all inpatient 
and specialist areas, such as the emergency departments, 
theatres and outpatients. A number of areas underwent 
re-assessment and have been able to improve on 
their previous ratings. 12 areas have now achieved an 
‘Outstanding’ rating.  

Outcomes from those assessments are reviewed within 
the Divisions and are overseen by the Quality Assurance 
Committee, which is chaired by a Non-Executive Director.

North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust is fully 
compliant with the registration requirements of the  
Care Quality Commission.

Register of Interests

North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust has published 
an up-to-date register of interests for decision-making 
staff within the past 12 months, as required by the 
‘Managing Conflicts of Interest in the NHS’ guidance.

Gifts and Hospitality

North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust has published 
an up-to-date register of interests, including gifts and 
hospitality, for decision making staff within the last 12 
months, on its website, www.nwangliaft.nhs.uk, as 
required by the ‘Managing Conflicts of Interest in the 
NHS’ guidance.

Compliance with equality, diversity 
and human rights legislation

Control measures are in place to ensure that all the 
organisation’s obligations under equality, diversity and 
human rights legislation are complied with.

Equality impact assessments are required for all new 
Trust business cases and all policy development and 
review, including employment-related policies. The  
Trust published gender pay gap information as required 
for 2019-20.

Compliance with Workforce Strategies 
and Staffing Systems

The Trust ensures adequate measures are in place to 
meet workforce strategies and staffing systems. Staffing 
processes are safe, sustainable and effective with regular 
reports to the Board.  

Compliance with NHS Pension Scheme 
regulations

As an employer with staff entitled to membership  
of the NHS Pension Scheme, control measures are in 
place to ensure all employer obligations contained  
within the Scheme regulations are complied with.  
This includes ensuring that deductions from salary, 
employer’s contributions and payments into the  
Scheme are in accordance with the Scheme rules,  
and that member Pension Scheme records are  
accurately updated in accordance with the  
timescales detailed in the Regulations.

Compliance with climate change 
adaptation reporting to meet the 
requirements under the Climate 
Change Act 2008

The Foundation Trust has undertaken risk assessments 
and has a sustainable development management plan 
in place which takes account of UK Climate Projections 
2018 (UKCP18). The trust ensures that its obligations 
under the Climate Change Act and the Adaptation 
Reporting requirements are complied with.

Modern Slavery and Human 
Trafficking Act 2015 

The Trust’s approach in meeting the requirements of 
the above Act has led to the development of a Board 
statement. This statement is currently being refreshed, 
although its publication maybe delayed due to the 
Covid-19 pandemic. This statement was developed in 
conjunction with the Trust’s Head of Procurement.

This statement is considered to be an element of the 
Trust’s commitment and demonstration of the need to be 
aware of this requirement, and associated values relating 
to equality, diversity and community relations.  
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NHS Foundation Licence condition FT4 
(FT Governance)

The Trust has a provider licence and condition FT4 relates 
to the Trust’s governance arrangements. This condition 
requires the Trust to:

•	 have an effective committee structure;

•	 have clear responsibilities for the Board, the Board 
committees and staff reporting to the Board and  
the Board committees;

•	 have clear reporting lines and accountabilities;

•	 ensure compliance with the requirement to operate 
efficiently, economically and effectively;

•	 have timely and effective scrutiny and oversight by 
the Board of the Trust’s operations;

•	 ensure compliance with health care standards;

•	 have effective financial decision-making, 
management and control;

•	 obtain and disseminate accurate, comprehensive, 
timely and up to date information for Board and 
committee decision-making;

•	 identify and manage material risks to compliance 
with the Licence conditions;

•	 generate and monitor delivery of business plans;

•	 ensure compliance with applicable legal 
requirements;

•	 ensure appropriate personnel on the Board and 
reporting to the Board;

•	 submit a corporate governance statement confirming 
compliance and a statement from the external 
auditor regarding compliance with the statement.

Each year the Audit Committee requires assurance 
on Board committee working, including compliance 
with their terms of reference. These committees meet 
routinely, covering the breadth of the Trust’s quality, 
finance and performance requirements, while providing 
scrutiny prior to each monthly Board meeting.  Individual 
committees have systems in place for assessing their own 
effectiveness annually. There is no current regulatory 
action in place.

Well-Led Governance review

The last independent reviews for both Peterborough 
and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and 
Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust were conducted 
by Deloitte in 2016 prior to the merger. 

The Trust completed its latest Well-Led Self-assessment 
in August 2019 and agreed seven priority areas for 
improvement. In addition, the Company Secretary 
conducted a Review of Governance Arrangements 
against the Well-Led Framework with a final report 
issued in December 2019.

In January 2020 the Board commissioned an external 
review of the Trust’s governance systems against the 
Well-Led Framework. This is in line with the guidance 
on developmental reviews of leadership and governance 
using the well-led framework published in June 2017.

Review of economy, efficiency and effectiveness of the 
use of resources

The Trust ensures economy, efficiency and effectiveness 
through a variety of means, including:

•	 a robust pay and non-pay budgetary control system;

•	 a suite of effective and consistently applied  
financial controls;

•	 effective tendering procedures;

•	 robust control of staffing levels;

•	 continuous service and cost improvement  
and modernisation.

The Trust benchmarks efficiency in a variety of ways, 
including through the national reference costs index 
and by comparison with key indices such as length of 
stay and day case percentages. The Board of Directors 
performs an integral role in maintaining the system of 
internal control supported by the Audit Committee, 
internal and external audit, and other key bodies.

Each year the Trust produces an Annual Plan, which 
sets out planned action for the year and risks against 
achieving those actions. The Trust aims to ensure that its 
Annual Plan is challenging but realistic and achievable, 
ensuring quality of care is at the forefront of the 
Trust’s business planning, while reducing costs, driving 
efficiencies, promoting good clinical outcomes, a good 
patient experience and patient safety. 

Detailed financial planning is part of the Trust’s 
regulatory requirements, with challenging cost 
improvement plans and an acknowledged financial 
deficit plan, and with actions being taken across the 
wider Cambridgeshire and Peterborough local health 
economy to ensure the clinical and overall long-term 
financial sustainability of providers.
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Structured below the Annual Plan are divisional plans, 
and capacity plans which detail specific objectives and 
milestones to deliver actions. To ensure delivery of 
planned actions, there is continual review of progress 
against plans within Divisions, and plans for cost savings 
are scrutinised by Executive Directors independently 
and at performance meetings. The Finance Committee 
monitors the achievement of plans (while maintaining 
and improving quality and safety). 

The emphasis in Internal Audit work is on providing 
assurances to the Audit Committee and to the Board 
on internal controls, risk management and governance 
systems. Further work is to be undertaken to ensure 
that corporate internal controls are embedded at an 
operational level.  

The Head of Internal Audit has provided an opinion of 
assurance for the year as follows:

“The organisation has an adequate and effective 
framework for risk management, governance and 
internal control. However, our work has identified further 
enhancements to the framework of risk management, 
governance and internal control to ensure that it remains 
adequate and effective.”

•	 Cost Improvement Planning and Delivery; 
Management of Temporary Staffing; Data Quality – 
Delivery of A&E Performance Targets; Care Quality 
Commissioning Divisional Compliance and PAS Post 
Implementation Review were given a ‘Reasonable’ 
level of assurance.  

•	 Effectiveness of E-Rostering; Consultant Job Planning 
and Risk Management were given a ‘Partial’ level  
of assurance.

•	 Assurance Mapping and Data Security and  
Protection Toolkit (DSP) were given an ‘Advisory’  
level of assurance.

There are four areas remaining where assurance is 
outstanding. This is due to the revised arrangements 
agreed to enable our Trust to respond to the Covid-19 
pandemic, with Internal Audit having paused issuing  
any final reports.

These nine audits have each been scrutinised at 
the Audit Committee and agreed actions are being 
undertaken by the Trust to address the control 
weaknesses identified.  

These accounts have been prepared on a going  
concern basis. 

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 requires 
management to assess, as part of the accounts 
preparation process, the Trust’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. The financial statements should be 
prepared on a going concern basis unless management 
either intends to apply to the Secretary of State for the 
dissolution of the NHS Foundation Trust without the 
transfer of services to another entity, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Management have considered the 2019-20 financial 
performance and position to inform the assessment: 

•	 The Trust recorded a £50k surplus for the  
2019-20 financial year, an improvement  
compared to a (£46.5m) deficit in 2018-19. 

•	 This includes recognition of provider incentive 
funding (MRET, PSF and FRF) amounting to £35.9m 
in 2019-20 as a consequence of the Trust meeting 
the control total set by NHS Improvement.

•	 The Trust delivered a £18.1m cost improvement 
programme against a £18.1m plan for 2019-20.  

•	 The Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 
2020 shows a cumulative deficit (i.e. negative 
income and expenditure reserve) of £472.2m. 

A key improvement led by Health Education  
England (HEE) has been to increase the number of 
newly-qualified nurses available to be employed, through 
the expansion in nurse training places commissioned. 
We have supported this and grown our frontline nursing 
workforce by working closely with our partner Higher 
Education Institutions, to deliver a number of different 
routes into nursing and introduction of new roles.

Nursing apprenticeships

19 staff are undertaking the BSC Nursing apprenticeship 
over a 42 month period, all are doing well and meeting 
the required outcomes. All students will be offered  
Band 5 contracts on successful completion of their course.

Nursing associates

We have been proactive in driving the new nursing 
associate role and currently have 70 trainee nursing 
associates. Eight nursing associates qualified in 
December 2019 and have joined our nursing workforce. 
This stand-alone role which bridges the gap between 
the healthcare assistants and registered nurses, frees up 
registered nurses to focus on more complex clinical care 
also provides a progression route into graduate level 
nursing. We have a number of acute clinical areas where 
this role as been embedded into their nursing workforce. 
The Trust is currently supporting 15 staff who wish to 
become graduate nurses through a top up BSc Nursing 
degree apprenticeship. 

Return to practice

We continue to support this initiative, however we do 
not have a local HEI provider that offers the course.  
We have, however, supported three nurses from a 
university out of area. One of these has successfully  
re-joined the professional register and joined our 
workforce as a registered nurse. The other two are still 
completing their practice hours and are applying for 
posts within the Trust. This highlights the effect our 
robust support delivered through mentorship in the 
clinical areas and the pre-registration education team  
to our trainees, has on recruitment and retention.

Advanced Clinical Practice (ACP)  
nurse roles

We are supporting the development of advanced clinical 
practice and have transformed service delivery and 
enhanced the services delivered to our local community 
by training and developing ACPs within our workforce.  
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Retention

We continue to build upon and improve initiatives 
to retain our nursing workforce. This is supported by 
regular meetings with our Workforce lead from NHS 
Improvement as part of the direct support programme. 
Our latest data pack evidences that we have successfully 
reduced the percentage of staff leaving the trust within 
one year and when compared to other acute Trusts in 
the East of England, we are below average. Over the 
next year we will sustain this by continuing to enhance 
preceptorship and focus on actions around staff 
development, career pathways and focused support 
to areas of high turnover. This retention work will also 
be supported by actions delivered from our Health and 
Wellbeing work stream

On 2 April 2020, the Department of Health and Social 
Care (DHSC) and NHS England and NHS Improvement 
announced reforms to the NHS cash regime for the 
2020-21 financial year. During 2020-21 existing DHSC 
interim revenue and capital loans as at 31 March 2020 
will be extinguished and replaced with the issue of 
Public Dividend Capital (PDC) to allow the repayment. 
The affected loans totalling £269m are classified as 
current liabilities within these financial statements. As 
the repayment of these loans will be funded through the 
issue of PDC, this does not present a going concern risk 
for the Trust.

Further, the going concern assessment is made in the 
context of the ongoing coronavirus outbreak. On 11 
March 2020 the Chancellor of the Exchequer committed 
in Parliament, as part of the Budget 2020, that the 
NHS will receive all the resources needed to cope with 
coronavirus. This commitment was reaffirmed by Sir 
Simon Stevens, NHS Chief Executive, and Amanda 
Pritchard (NHS Chief Operating Officer, in a letter to NHS 
Chief Executive Officers on 17 March 2020. Since these 
announcements NHS England and NHS Improvement has 
introduced revised funding arrangements as of 1 April 
2020 designed to support NHS organisations throughout 
the coronavirus period. 

In conclusion, the Directors have a reasonable 
expectation that the Trust will have access to adequate 
resources to continue in operational existence for the 
foreseeable future and continue to provide services to 
our patients. For this reason, they continue to adopt the 
going concern basis in preparing the accounts.

Information governance 

The Trust delivers annual information governance 
training for all staff across the Trust to raise awareness of 
the importance of protecting patient information.

Information governance training encourages staff to 
report personal data-related incidents.  All reported 
incidents are investigated by the Trust’s Information 
Governance (IG) team and where applicable, Trust 
policies and procedures are revised to prevent incidents 
re-occurring as well as to incorporate lessons learnt into 
the Trust’s IG training.

An Internal Audit of the Data Security & Protection 
(DSP) Toolkit progress during November 2019 delivered 

a ‘Satisfactory rating’. A limited audit of some security 
aspects is in progress, prior to a wider audit later in 
2020, following some reconfiguration of the network.

The Trust’s external auditors were provided with evidence 
to support assurance around the supporting IT processes 
for the financial systems; they have subsequently 
confirmed that this is satisfactory.  

There were 10 recommendations from Information 
Governance, most of which have now been 
implemented, with plans put in place to ensure the 
others are completed in the short term.

Our DSP Toolkit submission for 2019-20 is almost 
complete and will be ready for early March.

The Trust’s training compliance has risen from 73% 
to 88% in the last year by adding additional face-to-
face sessions across all sites and bespoke briefings for 
departments.  During walkabouts, the IG Team found 
that data protection considerations are, on the whole, 
included in all actions regarding patients.

We will be revising the training this year to include video 
demonstrations of the type of data protection breaches 
most prevalent in an NHS environment.

Work will continue during 2020-21 to simplify processes 
and guidance documents and raise awareness as follows:

•	 continue to offer face-to-face training sessions across 
the Trust encouraging staff to ask questions on what 
may be concerning them;

•	 offer of bespoke training sessions to departments as 
part of their training days;

•	 working together with IT colleagues to simplify  
risk management processes. This is key in  
identifying what information assets we hold  
in order to take appropriate safeguarding  
measures – a GDPR requirement;

•	 ensuring continued GDPR & DPA18 compliance 
following EU exit and incorporation of any changes 
into policies and guidance documents;

•	 Ongoing enforcement of individual duties to protect 
and safeguard patient, staff and commercial data.

Working together with the Communications team, PALS 
and Complaints on promoting preventative measures 
to reduce the risk of data protection breaches and 
managing any issues quickly and effectively.

I am extremely grateful for the level  
of kindness and care I received from  

the Ophthalmology department from  
start to finish. Today was my last 

appointment following a  
retinal detachment.
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Data Quality and Governance

The Trust has robust data quality procedures in place 
that ensure the robustness of data used in the Quality 
Account. These data quality procedures range from 
ensuring data is input into transactional systems 
correctly, information is extracted and interpreted 
accurately and is reported in a way that is meaningful 
and precise. All staff that have a responsibility for 
inputting data are trained fully in both the use of the 
systems and how the information will be used.

Steps put in place to assure the Board that appropriate 
controls are in place to ensure the accuracy of data, 
include the following: 

•	 The Trust has a robust process for scrutinising and 
revising local policies and monitoring compliance 
with NICE and other best practice guidelines. 
Annual audit programmes include the assessment 
of compliance with best practice guidance at both 
local and national level. This provides assurances to 
the Board that the quality of clinical care is based on 
the best clinical practice recognised nationally and 
that policies are up to date, appropriate and meet 
legislative obligations;

•	 The Trust has a Data Quality Group which is 
responsible for reviewing the way data is captured 
and recorded, in order to ensure accuracy and 
robustness. Internal and external data audits are 
undertaken, focusing on data quality and associated 
process and procedures.

The Quality Assurance Committee reports directly to 
the Board on quality issues.  It works to ensure that 
appropriate assurance on quality governance is provided, 
in order to enable the Board and the Audit Committee to 
be satisfied on this area of internal control. The Quality 
Assurance Committee is chaired by a Non-Executive 
Director and includes external representatives from local 
Clinical Commissioning Groups and Healthwatch, as well 
as governor observation.

At an operational level, the Trust’s Quality Governance 
Operational Committee is chaired by the Medical 
Director, and provides leadership and support for 
the clinical divisions in meeting quality governance 
requirements.  It acts as a multi-disciplinary forum for 
clinical matters relating to the safety and quality of 
patient experience and ensures adequate processes 
are in place to deliver robust risk assessment and 
management activities. 

Quality reviews are carried out on a monthly and 
quarterly basis at a Divisional and Trust level. These 
enable the monitoring of clinical quality improvements 
and provide assurance on compliance with the best 
practice standards at all levels of service. 

The Trust’s Board of Directors, Quality Assurance 
Committee and Quality Governance Operational 
Committee receive data from a number of different 
sources so that the quality information can be 
triangulated and reviewed from a number of different 
perspectives.  The quality of data is audited through 
specific governance indicator reviews and directorate 
deep dives by the quality assurance committee monthly 
and rotated.  Local data, including the Matrons’ 

Balanced Scorecard, are referenced against complaints, 
litigation, adverse events and PALS data, clinical 
benchmarking from Dr Foster, the Quality Risk Profiles/
Intelligent Monitoring Tool produced by the CQC, peer 
review and regulatory visits.

Review of effectiveness 

As Accounting Officer, I have responsibility for reviewing 
the effectiveness of the system of internal control. 

My review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control is informed by the work of the internal auditors, 
clinical audit and the executive managers and clinical 
leads within the NHS Foundation Trust who have 
responsibility for the development and maintenance 
of the internal control framework. I have drawn on 
performance information available to me. 

My review is also informed by comments made by  
the external auditors in their management letter and 
other reports. 

I have been advised on the implications of the result of 
my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control by the board, the Audit Committee [and Risk / 
Clinical Governance / Quality Committee, if appropriate] 
and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous 
improvement of the system is in place. 

•	 Internal Audit Reports

•	 Head of Internal Audit Opinion

•	 External Audit Reports

•	 Internal and External Peer Reviews

•	 Clinical Audit Reports

•	 Patient Surveys

•	 Staff Survey

•	 Care Quality Commission Intelligent Monitoring 

•	 Senior Leadership Walk-rounds

•	 Care Quality Commission - registration and reports

•	 Equality and Diversity Reports

•	 Health Education England Reports

•	 General Medical Council Reports

I have been advised on the implications of the result of 
my review of the effectiveness of the system of internal 
control by the Board and Audit Committee.

The Board of Directors also works with increased 
assurance from the Board sub-committees: Quality 
Assurance Committee, Finance Committee, People 
and Performance Committee, Remuneration and 
Nominations Committee, Strategic Development 
Committee and PCH PFI Assurance Committee.  The 
work of these committees, together with the Audit 
Committee, is kept under review to ensure that there is 
complete oversight from the Audit Committee on the 
Trust’s system of internal control.   
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While the Trust has known financial constraints, the 
Board of Directors has been clear in its commitment and 
support for the continuous improvement in the quality of 
care.  Patients are at the centre of everything we do, and 
the Board routinely receives a patient story at the start of 
each public meeting.  This ensures that the experience 
of our patients is seen and treated as a priority.  Also, 
it delivers the important message that getting quality 
right first time has a synergy with the efficient use of 
resources, and enables the Trust to balance both quality 
and financial performance. 

Conclusion

The Annual Governance Statement requires me to 
consider whether there are any significant internal 
concerns facing the Trust.

While there are strong mechanisms for ensuring 
the quality of care received by the Trust’s patients is 
maintained and improved, there are internal control 
weaknesses identified in the Trust’s ability to work 
effectively, efficiently and economically.  

In 2019-20 the Trust recorded a deficit of £35.2m 
against a plan of £35.3m.  This achievement resulted in 
the Trust earning national incentive money of £29.6m 
which reduced the Trust’s deficit to £5.6m.  As a result 
of meeting the control total the Trust was awarded a 
further £5.65m which resulted in a final position for 
2019-20 of a £50k surplus.

The Trust achieved its Cost Improvement Programme 
(CIP), meeting the target of £18.1m.

As well as delivering our revenue plan we also completed 
a substantial capital programme.  £11m was spent 
in March taking us to £28.5m for the year, including 
£7.5m on medical equipment, £8.0m on IT systems and 
infrastructure and finally £13.0m on premises, buildings 
and backlog maintenance.

Our project to install a single Patient Administration 
System across all three hospitals was successfully 
delivered in 2019. 

The Full Business Case to redevelop our urgent care 
facilities at Hinchingbrooke Hospital was presented to 
the Board of Directors for approval.  This work is to help 
shape our new and improved urgent care facilities in 
the Emergency Department, plus an expanded Acute 
Assessment Unit and Ambulatory Care Unit.  

A formal sale process was launched during early 
February 2020 for land disposal on the Stamford 
Hospital site.  There was an Open Day on 13 March and 
initial unconditional offers were returned on 31 March 
2020. The process includes an initial bid phase against 
a minimum offer price. A further phase will refine these 
bids through a Best and Final offer stage, which were 
due to take place in the new financial year.

However, there have been significant challenges during 
the year.

Despite best efforts, like almost every other hospital 
in the country, we did not meet the four-hour 
waiting target for our Emergency Departments. Like 

many hospitals providing emergency care, we saw a 
continued rise in emergency activity this year at both the 
Peterborough City and Hinchingbrooke Hospital sites. 
The increase in demand for emergency care, coupled 
with an ongoing higher-than-average number of patients 
who were medically fit to leave hospital, but faced a 
delay in additional community support, has, at times, 
impacted negatively on patients’ journeys through our 
hospitals during 2019-20. 

Despite these pressures, significant improvements were 
delivered at the Hinchingbrooke Hospital site to improve 
the waiting time experience on emergency patients.

The Trust is working with its local health and social care 
partners to further focus on emergency care and the 
need to achieve the four-hour waiting time standard, 
reduce the level of delayed transfers of patients to other 
providers of care, and improve the effectiveness of its 
elective care pathway.

We have been, and continue to operate during 
unprecedented times as a Trust, a national health service 
and country as we cope with the global Covid-19 
pandemic. Our local health system has adopted a 
command and control structure to ensure a thorough 
and co-ordinated response.  Like all acute Trusts across 
the country, we are working with our health system 
partners, and alongside our colleagues from Public 
Health England, to keep vital health services running 
while we respond to the ever-changing situation. 

This has included stopping hospital visiting but 
introducing alternative ways for relatives to stay in 
touch with loved ones who are inpatients.  We have 
also changed the way the vast majority of outpatient 
appointments were conducted – shifting from clinic 
sessions to virtual and telephone appointments. In 
addition, all non-urgent operations were postponed, 
however we have worked with the private sector to 
ensure our urgent cancer patients could have their 
operations as planned. We have managed the huge 
impact on our workforce brought by increased sickness, 
absences due to childcare issues, shielding and the need 
to self-isolate for short periods.

Despite the enormous impact of Covid-19 on our 
patients, staff and volunteers, we are now planning our 
road to recovery to ensure those patients whose care 
has been delayed can be seen as soon as possible. Our 
services post Covid-19 will undoubtedly see changes as 
a result of the learning we have gathered during such 
unprecedented times. As ever, we remain committed 
to improving and developing our patient care and 
experience.

Caroline Walker
Chief Executive
22 June 2020 

108



109





SECTION TWO        
ANNUAL ACCOUNTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED  
31 MARCH 2020



STATEMENT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 
RESPONSIBILITIES AS THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER  
OF NORTH WEST ANGLIA NHS FOUNDATION TRUST

The NHS Act 2006 states that the Chief Executive 
is the accounting officer of the NHS Foundation 
Trust. The relevant responsibilities of the accounting 
officer, including their responsibility for the propriety 
and regularity of public finances for which they are 
answerable, and for the keeping of proper accounts, are 
set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Accounting Officer 
Memorandum issued by NHS Improvement. 

NHS Improvement, in exercise of the powers conferred 
on Monitor by the NHS Act 2006, has given Accounts 
Directions which require North West Anglia NHS 
foundation Trust to prepare for each financial year a 
statement of accounts in the form and on the basis 
required by those Directions. The accounts are prepared 
on an accruals basis and must give a true and fair 
view of the state of affairs of North West Anglia NHS 
Foundation Trust and of its income and expenditure, 
other items of comprehensive income and cash flows for 
the financial year. 

In preparing the accounts and overseeing the use of 
public funds, the Accounting Officer is required to 
comply with the requirements of the Department of 
Health and Social Care’s Group Accounting Manual and 
in particular to:

•	 Observe the Accounts Direction issued by NHS 
Improvement, including the relevant accounting 
and disclosure requirements, and apply suitable 
accounting policies on a consistent basis 

•	 Make judgements and estimates on a  
reasonable basis

•	 State whether applicable accounting standards as  
set out in the NHS Foundation Trust Annual 
Reporting Manual (and the Department of Health 
and Social Care Group Accounting Manual) have 
been followed, and disclose and explain any material 
departures in the financial statements 

•	 Ensure that the use of public funds complies  
with the relevant legislation, delegated authorities 
and guidance

•	 Confirm that the annual report and accounts, taken 
as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable 
and provides the information necessary for patients, 
regulators and stakeholders to assess the NHS 
Foundation Trust’s performance, business model  
and strategy and

•	 Prepare the financial statements on a going concern 
basis and disclose any material uncertainties over 
going concern.

The accounting officer is responsible for keeping  
proper accounting records which disclose with 
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position  
of the NHS Foundation Trust and to enable them to 
ensure that the accounts comply with requirements 
outlined in the above mentioned Act. The Accounting 
Officer is also responsible for safeguarding the assets 
of the NHS Foundation Trust and hence for taking 
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection  
of fraud and other irregularities. 

As far as I am aware, there is no relevant audit 
information of which the Foundation Trust’s auditors  
are unaware, and I have taken all the steps that I ought 
to have taken to make myself aware of any relevant 
audit information and to establish that the entity’s 
auditors are aware of that information.                                                                                                                                    

To the best of my knowledge and belief, I have properly 
discharged the responsibilities set out in the NHS 
Foundation Trust Accounting Officer Memorandum.

C N Walker
Chief Executive
22 June 2020
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REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

1. Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited the financial statements of North 
West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust (“the Trust”) for 
the year ended 31 March 2020 which comprises 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income, 
Statement of Financial Position, Statement of 
Changes in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows and 
the related notes, including the accounting policies 
in note 1. 

In our opinion: 

— the financial statements give a true and fair 
view of the state of the Trust’s affairs as at 31 
March 2020 and of the Trust’s income and 
expenditure for the year then ended; and

— the Trust’s financial statements have been 
properly prepared in accordance with the 
Accounts Direction issued under paragraphs 24 
and 25 of Schedule 7 of the National Health 
Service Act 2006, the NHS Foundation Trust 
Annual Reporting Manual 2019/20 and the 
Department of Health and Social Care Group 
Accounting Manual 2019/20. 

Basis for opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with 
International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs 
(UK)”) and applicable law. Our responsibilities are 
described below. We have fulfilled our ethical 
responsibilities under, and are independent of the 
Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements 
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient 
and appropriate basis for our opinion. 

Independent 
auditor’s report
to the Council of Governors of North West Anglia NHS 
Foundation Trust 

Overview

Materiality: 
financial statements 
as a whole

£7m (2019: £6m)

1.4% (2019: 1.37%) of total 
revenue

Risks of material misstatement vs 2019

Recurring risks Valuation of land and 
buildings

◄►

Recognition of NHS 
and non-NHS income

◄►

Fraudulent expenditure 
recognition

◄►



2. Material uncertainty related to going concern

The risk Our response

We draw attention to note 1.1 to the 
financial statements which indicates 
that the Trust had planned an underlying
deficit for 2020/21, excluding 
impairments and support funding, which 
is dependent on the achievement of 
Cost Improvement Programme (CIP) 
savings.  The planned deficit before 
provider incentive funding was originally 
£53.8 million for 2020/21, including a 
CIP target of £22.6 million. 

In April 2020, the DHSC published 
reforms to the NHS Cash Regime, 
which include the provision for existing 
interim revenue loans, including working 
capital facilities, to be repaid through 
additional Public Dividend Capital (PDC) 
issued to providers. This would mean 
that £269 million of the Trust’s 
outstanding loan balances with DHSC 
will be ‘converted’ to PDC during 
2020/21.

While this mitigates the issue of viability 
of repayment of existing loans as at 31 
March 2020, the Trust’s forecasts did 
not include any provider incentive 
funding or allowance for any revenue 
support.   The Trust’s pre-pandemic 
planning demonstrated that it would 
have continued to operate with a 
significant underlying financial deficit.   
In 2019/20 the Trust delivered a £0.4 
million surplus but also received £22 
million of revenue support and £39.5 
million of provider incentive funding in 
order to meet its working capital 
commitments and to achieve its control 
total.  The April 2020 NHS Cash Regime 
guidance confirms that any additional 
revenue support provided would be in 
the form of PDC. However, in the 
context of a pause in financial planning 
across the DHSC due to the Covid-19 
pandemic and the lack of an agreed 
financial plan and control total, the Trust 
does not have any written guarantees 
that all required revenue support and 
funding will be provided by DHSC for 
the foreseeable future.   

These events and conditions, along with 
the other matters explained in note 1.1, 
constitute a material uncertainty that 
may cast significant doubt on the 
Trust’s ability to continue as a going 
concern. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of 
this matter.

Disclosure quality

The financial statements explain how 
the Board has formed a judgement 
that it is appropriate to adopt the going 
concern basis of preparation for the
Trust.

That judgement is based on an 
evaluation of the inherent risks to the 
Trust’s financial plan and how those 
risks might affect the Trust’s financial 
resources or ability to continue 
operations over a period of at least a 
year from the date of approval of the 
financial statements. 

The risk for our audit is whether or not 
those risks are such that they amount 
to a material uncertainty that may cast 
significant doubt about the ability to 
continue as a going concern.  If so, 
that fact is required to be disclosed (as 
has been done) and, along with a 
description of the circumstances, is a 
key financial statement disclosure.

Our procedures included:

Funding assessment:

— We inspected and challenged the 
assumptions in the 2020/21 financial 
and cash flow forecast to ensure 
that the correct assumptions were 
included regarding current funding 
arrangements and the assumptions 
for the remainder of the year were 
appropriate.

— We inspected DHSC confirmations 
of the amount of loan to be 
converted to PDC post year end. 

Our NHS experience:

— We assessed the likelihood of NHS 
Improvement & NHS England 
transferring services to other NHS 
bodies using our own NHS 
experience.

— We assessed the likelihood of DHSC 
providing future funding in the form 
of PDC. 

Assessing transparency:

— We assessed the completeness and 
accuracy of the matters covered in 
the going concern disclosure.

Our findings:

We found the resulting disclosure of the 
material uncertainty to be proportionate 
(2019: proportionate)

3. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements 
and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those 
which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the 
engagement team. We summarise below the three key audit matters (unchanged from 2019), in decreasing order of audit significance, 
in arriving at our audit opinion above together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and our findings from those 
procedures in order that the Trust’s governors as a body may better understand the process by which we arrived at our audit opinion. 
These matters were addressed, and our findings are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The risk Our response

Valuation of land and 
buildings

(£394 million; 2020: £404 
million; 2019)

Refer to SOFP, Note 13 
PPE

Subjective valuation

Land and buildings are required to be 
maintained at up to date estimates of year-
end market value in existing use (EUV) for non-
specialised property assets in operational use, 
and, for specialised assets where no market 
value is readily ascertainable, the depreciated 
replacement cost (DRC) of a modern 
equivalent asset that has the same service 
potential as the existing property (MEA). 

Valuations are inherently judgemental, 
therefore our work is focused on whether the 
valuation methodology, assumptions and 
underlying data used to arrive at those are 
appropriate and applied correctly.

It is also necessary to consider whether there 
is any indication of impairment.  Impairment 
could occur as a result of loss of market value 
due to conditions in the market or due to 
deterioration in the value in use of the asset, 
either because of its condition or because of 
obsolescence.

The Trust adopts a policy of undertaking a full 
revaluation of its land and buildings every five 
years with interim desktop valuations each 
year.

The Trust engaged an external valuer to 
complete a desktop valuation of the land, 
buildings and dwellings of the Trust as at 31 
March 2020.  The revaluation exercise resulted 
in a £7.8 million reduction in building values 
and a £2.9 million reduction in land values 
when compared to the prior year.

Following RICS published guidance issued to 
the profession, material uncertainty clauses 
have been noted within valuation reports due 
to the impact of Covid-19.  Appropriate 
disclosure will be required to note the 
uncertainty and the sensitivity of the estimates 
and judgements applied in the valuation of 
land and buildings.  

Our procedures included: 

— Assessing valuer's credentials: We assessed the 
independence, objectivity and capabilities of the 
valuer and the terms under which they were 
engaged by management; 

— Methodology choice:  We assessed the 
reasonableness of the assumptions adopted during 
the valuation exercise particularly regarding gross 
internal areas (GIA) data and use of the buildings;

— Methodology choice: We considered the 
revaluation basis and benchmarks used by the 
valuer;

— Test of details: We considered the accuracy of the 
underlying data provided to the valuer and undertook 
testing to ensure both its completeness and 
accuracy;

— Test of details: For a sample of assets that were 
reclassified during the year from assets under 
construction to buildings we reviewed the transfer 
from assets under construction and confirmed that 
the value transferred was appropriate; and

— Test of detail: We considered the appropriateness 
of the accounting treatment applied by the Trust 
when recognising revaluation gains or losses on 
individual assets.

Our findings:

We found the resulting valuation of land and buildings to 
be balanced (2019: balanced)



3. Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements 
and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by us, including those 
which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of the 
engagement team. We summarise below the three key audit matters (unchanged from 2019), in decreasing order of audit significance, 
in arriving at our audit opinion above together with our key audit procedures to address those matters and our findings from those 
procedures in order that the Trust’s governors as a body may better understand the process by which we arrived at our audit opinion. 
These matters were addressed, and our findings are based on procedures undertaken, in the context of, and solely for the purpose of, 
our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and consequently are incidental to that opinion, and 
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

The risk Our response

Valuation of land and 
buildings

(£394 million; 2020: £404 
million; 2019)

Refer to SOFP, Note 13 
PPE

Subjective valuation

Land and buildings are required to be 
maintained at up to date estimates of year-
end market value in existing use (EUV) for non-
specialised property assets in operational use, 
and, for specialised assets where no market 
value is readily ascertainable, the depreciated 
replacement cost (DRC) of a modern 
equivalent asset that has the same service 
potential as the existing property (MEA). 

Valuations are inherently judgemental, 
therefore our work is focused on whether the 
valuation methodology, assumptions and 
underlying data used to arrive at those are 
appropriate and applied correctly.

It is also necessary to consider whether there 
is any indication of impairment.  Impairment 
could occur as a result of loss of market value 
due to conditions in the market or due to 
deterioration in the value in use of the asset, 
either because of its condition or because of 
obsolescence.

The Trust adopts a policy of undertaking a full 
revaluation of its land and buildings every five 
years with interim desktop valuations each 
year.

The Trust engaged an external valuer to 
complete a desktop valuation of the land, 
buildings and dwellings of the Trust as at 31 
March 2020.  The revaluation exercise resulted 
in a £7.8 million reduction in building values 
and a £2.9 million reduction in land values 
when compared to the prior year.

Following RICS published guidance issued to 
the profession, material uncertainty clauses 
have been noted within valuation reports due 
to the impact of Covid-19.  Appropriate 
disclosure will be required to note the 
uncertainty and the sensitivity of the estimates 
and judgements applied in the valuation of 
land and buildings.  

Our procedures included: 

— Assessing valuer's credentials: We assessed the 
independence, objectivity and capabilities of the 
valuer and the terms under which they were 
engaged by management; 

— Methodology choice:  We assessed the 
reasonableness of the assumptions adopted during 
the valuation exercise particularly regarding gross 
internal areas (GIA) data and use of the buildings;

— Methodology choice: We considered the 
revaluation basis and benchmarks used by the 
valuer;

— Test of details: We considered the accuracy of the 
underlying data provided to the valuer and undertook 
testing to ensure both its completeness and 
accuracy;

— Test of details: For a sample of assets that were 
reclassified during the year from assets under 
construction to buildings we reviewed the transfer 
from assets under construction and confirmed that 
the value transferred was appropriate; and

— Test of detail: We considered the appropriateness 
of the accounting treatment applied by the Trust 
when recognising revaluation gains or losses on 
individual assets.

Our findings:

We found the resulting valuation of land and buildings to 
be balanced (2019: balanced)



The risk Our response

Recognition of NHS and Non-
NHS income

(£521 million; 2020: £436 million; 
2019)

Refer to SOCI and Note 3 and 4 of 
Accounts

Effect of irregularities

Of the Trust's total reported income 
96% came from Clinical Commission 
Groups (CCGs), NHS England and other 
NHS bodies. 

Of the other £92 million of operating 
income, the Trust reported income of 
£91million from contract income which
includes provider incentive funding (PSF, 
FRF, MRET) £35.9 million, £10 million of 
PFI core funding, £2.4 million of 
pharmacy sales and £2.8 million of car 
parking income. Much of this income is 
contracted from NHS and non-NHS 
bodies under contracts that indicate 
when income will be received; on 
delivery, milestones, or periodically. 
Some sources of income require 
independent confirmations which can 
impact the amount the Trust will 
receive.

An agreement of balances exercise 
(AoB) is undertaken between all NHS 
bodies to agree the value of transactions 
during the year and the amounts owed 
at the year end. Discrepancies between 
the submitted balances from each party 
can result in adjustments being made to 
year end balances. 

In 2019/20 the Trust secured £39.5 
million of provider incentive funding for 
achieving agreed financial and 
performance targets.

We do not consider NHS and non-NHS 
income to be at high risk of significant 
misstatement, or to be subject to a 
significant judgement.  However, due to 
its materiality in the context of the 
financial statements as a whole, NHS 
and non-NHS operating income is 
considered to be one of the areas that 
had the greatest effect on our overall 
audit strategy and the allocation of 
resources in planning and completing 
our audit work.  

Our procedures included: 

— Tests of detail: We tested key controls in 
relation to NHS income contracts by 
investigating a sample of contract 
variations and sought explanations from 
management. For all contracts we 
confirmed that signed contracts were in 
place. We tested that invoices had been 
issued in line with the signed contracts for 
these commissioners;

— Test of detail:  We sample tested non-NHS 
income by agreeing to invoices and 
subsequent receipt of funds.

— Test of detail: We inspected supporting 
documentation for variances over £300,000 
arising from the AoB exercise to critically 
assess the Trust’s assessment of its 
achievement of contract KPIs and  
accounting for disputed income. Where 
applicable we investigated variances and 
reviewed relevant correspondence to 
assess the reasonableness of the Trust’s 
approach to recognising income from 
Commissioners.

— Test of detail: We assessed the Trust’s 
calculation of performance against the 
financial and operational targets used in 
determining receipt of provider incentive 
funding to determine the amount the Trust 
qualified to receive. We agreed the amounts 
recorded in the accounts to our calculation.

— Test of detail: We tested income 
transactions that spanned the financial year 
end to assess whether the income had been 
recognised in the correct financial period.

Our findings: 

We found no errors which are above our 
£300,000 reporting threshold (2018-19: no 
errors).

The risk Our response

Fraudulent Expenditure 
recognition

Non-pay expenditure

(£184.2 million; 2020 is £177.4
million ;2019)

Refer to SOCI and Note 5

NHS and Non-NHS accruals 
(£8.8m million; 2019: £7.4m
million)

Refer to SOFP and Note 19.

Effects of irregularities

In the public sector, auditors also 
consider the risk that material 
misstatements due to fraudulent 
financial reporting may arise from the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition 
(for instance by deferring expenditure to 
a later period). This may arise due to the 
audited body manipulating expenditure 
to meet externally set targets. 

This risk does not apply to all 
expenditure in the year to the 31 March 
2020. The incentives for fraudulent 
expenditure recognition relate to 
achieving financial targets and the key 
risks relate to the manipulation of 
accrued non-pay expenditure at year
end.

In 2019/20 the Trust secured £35.9 
million of provider incentive funding for 
achieving agreed financial and 
performance targets.  There may 
therefore be an incentive to defer 
expenditure, or recognise commitments 
at a reduced value in order to achieve 
the control total agreed with NHS 
Improvement. 

Our procedures included: 

̶ Test of detail: We tested expenditure 
transactions that spanned the financial year 
end to assess whether the expenditure had 
been recognised in the correct financial 
period;

̶ Test of detail: For a sample of accruals 
recognised at the financial year end we 
assessed the appropriateness of the 
existence of the accrual and the 
reasonableness of the accrual calculation;

̶ Test of detail: We inspected supporting 
documentation for variances over £300,000 
arising from the AoB exercise in relation to 
accrued expenditure to critically assess the 
reasonableness of the Trust’s year end 
accruals. Where applicable we investigated 
variances and reviewed relevant 
correspondence to assess the 
reasonableness of the Trust’s approach to 
recognising expenditure with other NHS 
organisations; and

̶ Test of details: We tested that senior staff 
are not remunerated based upon financial 
results, nor is the funding made available to 
the Trust based upon the results presented 
in the financial statements.

Our findings

We found no errors which are above our 
£300,000 reporting threshold (2018-19: no 
errors).



The risk Our response

Fraudulent Expenditure 
recognition

Non-pay expenditure

(£184.2 million; 2020 is £177.4
million ;2019)

Refer to SOCI and Note 5

NHS and Non-NHS accruals 
(£8.8m million; 2019: £7.4m
million)

Refer to SOFP and Note 19.

Effects of irregularities

In the public sector, auditors also 
consider the risk that material 
misstatements due to fraudulent 
financial reporting may arise from the 
manipulation of expenditure recognition 
(for instance by deferring expenditure to 
a later period). This may arise due to the 
audited body manipulating expenditure 
to meet externally set targets. 

This risk does not apply to all 
expenditure in the year to the 31 March 
2020. The incentives for fraudulent 
expenditure recognition relate to 
achieving financial targets and the key 
risks relate to the manipulation of 
accrued non-pay expenditure at year
end.

In 2019/20 the Trust secured £35.9 
million of provider incentive funding for 
achieving agreed financial and 
performance targets.  There may 
therefore be an incentive to defer 
expenditure, or recognise commitments 
at a reduced value in order to achieve 
the control total agreed with NHS 
Improvement. 

Our procedures included: 

̶ Test of detail: We tested expenditure 
transactions that spanned the financial year 
end to assess whether the expenditure had 
been recognised in the correct financial 
period;

̶ Test of detail: For a sample of accruals 
recognised at the financial year end we 
assessed the appropriateness of the 
existence of the accrual and the 
reasonableness of the accrual calculation;

̶ Test of detail: We inspected supporting 
documentation for variances over £300,000 
arising from the AoB exercise in relation to 
accrued expenditure to critically assess the 
reasonableness of the Trust’s year end 
accruals. Where applicable we investigated 
variances and reviewed relevant 
correspondence to assess the 
reasonableness of the Trust’s approach to 
recognising expenditure with other NHS 
organisations; and

̶ Test of details: We tested that senior staff 
are not remunerated based upon financial 
results, nor is the funding made available to 
the Trust based upon the results presented 
in the financial statements.

Our findings

We found no errors which are above our 
£300,000 reporting threshold (2018-19: no 
errors).



4. Our application of materiality

Materiality tor the Trust's financial statements as a 
whole was set at £7 million (2019 : £6 million), 
determined with reference to a benchmark of total 
revenue (of which it represents approximately 1.4% 
(2019: 1.37 %)). We consider total revenue to be more 
stable than a surplus or deficit-related benchmark .

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any 
corrected and uncorrected identified misstatements 
exceeding £0.3 million (2019: £0.3 million), in addition to 
other identified misstatements that warranted reporting 
on qualitative grounds.

Our audit of the Trust was undertaken to the materiality 
level specified above. Our interim audit was performed at 
the Trust’s headquarters in Peterborough.  Our final  audit 
was performed remotely due to the impact of Covid-19. 

£7m
Trust whole financial
statements materiality
(2019: £6m)

£0.3m
Misstatements reported to the 
audit committee (2019: £0.3m)

Total Revenue
£521m (2019: £436m)

Materiality
£7m (2019: £6m)

Total Revenue
Materiality

Remuneration report

In our opinion the part of the remuneration report to be audited has 
been properly prepared in accordance with the NHS Foundation 
Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2019/20. 

Corporate governance disclosures 

We are required to report to you if: 

— we have identified material inconsistencies between the 
knowledge we acquired during our financial statements audit 
and the directors’ statement that they consider that the annual 
report and financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced 
and understandable and provides the information necessary for 
stakeholders to assess the Trust’s position and performance, 
business model and strategy; or 

— the section of the annual report describing the work of the Audit 
Committee does not appropriately address matters 
communicated by us to the Audit Committee; or

— the Annual Governance Statement does not reflect the 
disclosure requirements set out in the NHS Foundation Trust 
Annual Reporting Manual 2019/20, is misleading or is not 
consistent with our knowledge of the Trust and other 
information of which we are aware from our audit of the 
financial statements.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

6.   Respective responsibilities 

Accounting Officer’s responsibilities

The Accounting Officer is responsible for: the preparation of 
financial statements that give a true and fair view; such internal 
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Trust’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters 
related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless they have been informed by the relevant national 
body of the intention to dissolve the Trust without the transfer of its 
services to another public sector entity. 

Auditor’s responsibilities 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our 
opinion in an auditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level 
of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they 
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of the financial statements. 

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s 
website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities

5. We have nothing to report on the other information in the 
Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information presented 
in the Annual Report together with the financial statements. Our 
opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other 
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion 
or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether, based on our financial statements audit 
work, the information therein is materially misstated or 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. 
Based solely on that work we have not identified material 
misstatements in the other information.

In our opinion the other information included in the Annual Report 
for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements 



REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY 
MATTERS

We have nothing to report on the statutory reporting 
matters  

We are required by Schedule 2 to the Code of Audit 
Practice issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General (‘the 
Code of Audit Practice’)  to report to you if:

— any reports to the regulator have been made under 
Schedule 10(6) of the National Health Service Act 2006.

— any matters have been reported in the public interest 
under Schedule 10(3) of the National Health Service Act 
2006 in the course of, or at the end of the audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Our conclusion on the Trust’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the 
use of resources is qualified

Under the Code of Audit Practice we are required to report 
to you if the Trust has not made proper arrangement for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources.

Qualified opinion

Subject to the matters outlined in the basis for qualified
conclusion paragraph below we are satisfied that in all 
significant respects North West Anglia NHS Foundation 
Trust put in place proper arrangements for securing 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resources for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Basis for ‘except for’ conclusion 

In considering the Trust's arrangements for securing 
sustainable resource deployment, we identified the 
following matters:

- The Trust achieved a surplus of £0.4 million (£46.5 
million deficit in 2018/19) however, the Trust received 
£22 million of revenue support from the Department of 
Health and Social Care.  The Trust also received bonus 
funding totalling £35.9 million for the achievement of its 
financial targets which contributed to the reported 
surplus. 

- The Trust had an underlying deficit of £35.5 million for 
the year ended 31 March 2020 and reported a 
cumulative deficit (i.e. negative income and expenditure 
reserve) of £472.2 million.  

- The Trust's underlying deficit and its reliance on revenue 
support monies and its reliance on loans from the 
Department of Health which total £271 million as at 31 
March 2020 present a significant challenge in achieving 
financial sustainability to deliver strategic priorities and 
maintain statutory functions. 

This is evidence of the challenges in the Trust having proper 
arrangements in place for managing finances effectively to 
support the sustainable delivery of strategic priorities.

Respective responsibilities in respect of our review of 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources

The Trust is responsible for putting in place proper 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and 
effectiveness in the use of resources.. 

Under Section 62(1) and Schedule 10 paragraph 1(d), of the 
National Health Service Act 2006 we have a duty to satisfy 
ourselves that the Trust has made proper arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources.

We are not required to consider, nor have we considered, 
whether all aspects of the Trust’s arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources are operating effectively. 

We have undertaken our review in accordance with the 
Code of Audit Practice, having regard to the specified 
criterion issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General 
(C&AG) in November 2017, as to whether the Trust had 
proper arrangements to ensure it took properly informed 
decisions and deployed resources to achieve planned and 
sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people. We 
planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit 
Practice and related guidance. Based on our risk 
assessment, we undertook such work as we considered 
necessary. 

Report on our review of the adequacy of arrangements for 
securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use 
of resources   

We are required by guidance issued by the C&AG under 
Paragraph 9 of Schedule 6 to the Local Audit and 
Accountability Act 2014 to report on how our work 
addressed any identified significant risks to our conclusion 
on the adequacy of the Trust’s arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of 
resources. The ‘risk’ in this case is the risk that we could 
come to an incorrect conclusion in respect of the Trust’s 
arrangements, rather than the risk of the arrangements 
themselves being inadequate.

We carry out a risk assessment to determine the nature 
and extent of further work that may be required. Our risk 
assessment includes consideration of the significance of 
business and operational risks facing the Trust, insofar as 
they relate to ‘proper arrangements’. This includes sector 
and organisation level risks and draws on relevant cost and 
performance information as appropriate, as well as the 
results of reviews by inspectorates, review agencies and 
other relevant bodies.

The significant risk identified during our risk assessment is 
set out on the next page together with the findings from 
the work we carried out. 



Significant risk Description Work carried out and judgements

Sustainable resource 
deployment – management 
of Trust’s financial position

There is a risk that the Trust will 
have insufficient cash to meet its 
working capital requirements in 
2019/20 and over the medium term.

Due to the size of the underlying 
deficit and the financial support the 
Trust is receiving from the 
Department of Health there was 
consequently a significant risk that 
the year-end control total will not be 
achieved, including 
underperformance against CIP 
schemes, which would likely result 
in a reduction in provider incentive 
funding in 2019/20.

Our work included the following:

— We assessed the Trust’s financial sustainability 
and progress against the 2019/20 plan. This 
included the identification of any significant 
one-off items included within the reported 
headline result;

— We considered the Trust’s underlying deficit, 
the cumulative deficit position and the Trust’s 
reliance on revenue support and the receipt of 
provider incentive funding to achieve its control 
total for the year;

— We assessed the nature of financial support 
the Trust received from the Department of 
Health. We also considered compliance with 
the agency spending caps where mandatory;

— We assessed the level of non-recurrent 
measures underpinning the achievement of 
the 2019/20 plan, including the level of 
provider incentive funding (PSF, FRF and 
MRET) the Trust received;

— We assessed the CIP governance processes 
and how the Trust delivered against the CIP 
plan throughout the year;

— We assessed the Trust’s operational 
performance in year, notably compliance with 
national targets and other key indicators; 

— We considered the Trust’s financial and 
governance arrangements in place in response 
to the COVID-19 outbreak; 

— We reviewed the Trust’s April to July 2020/21 
planned block contracted income in light of the 
requirement for NHS Commissioners and NHS 
Trusts not to sign contracts for 2020/21; and

— We reviewed the Trust’s cash flow forecast for 
the period April 2020 to June 2021.

Our findings on this risk area:

The Trust's underlying deficit, its reliance on 
revenue and capital support from the 
Department of Health and Social Care which 
total £271 million as at 31 March 2020 present 
significant challenge in achieving financial 
sustainability. 

Whilst the Trust and its local health economy 
partners have identified efficiency schemes that 
could support improvement in the financial position 
in the short term its long-term plans are not yet 
sufficiently progressed to achieve an underlying 
break-even position in the foreseeable future.

These issues are evidence of weaknesses in proper 
arrangements for planning finances effectively to 
support the sustainable delivery of the Trust’s 
strategic priorities. 



THE PURPOSE OF OUR AUDIT WORK AND TO WHOM 
WE OWE OUR RESPONSIBILITIES 

This report is made solely to the Council of Governors of 
the Trust, as a body, in accordance with Schedule 10 of the 
National Health Service Act 2006 and the terms of our 
engagement by the Trust. Our audit work has been 
undertaken so that we might state to the Council of 
Governors of the Trust, as a body, those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor's report, and the 
further matters we are required to state to them in 
accordance with the terms agreed with the Trust, and for 
no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other 
than the Council of Governors of the Trust, as a body, for 
our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have 
formed.

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLETION OF THE AUDIT

We certify that we have completed the audit of the 
accounts of North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust for 
the year ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with the 
requirements of Schedule 10 of the National Health Service 
Act 2006 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the 
National Audit Office.

Fleur Nieboer

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants 

15 Canada Square

London

25 June 2020



FOREWORD TO THE ACCOUNTS

These accounts, for the year ended 31 March 2020, have 
been prepared by North West Anglia NHS Foundation 
Trust in accordance with paragraphs 24 & 25 of Schedule 
7 within the National Health Service Act 2006.	

C N Walker
Chief Executive
22 June 2020
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The notes on pages 17 to 51 form part of these accounts.

 
Note

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Operating income from patient care activities

Other operating income 

Operating expenses

3

4

5, 7

429,272 

92,141 

(500,323)

381,082 

54,831 

(463,007)

Operating surplus/(deficit) from continuing operations 21,090 (27,094)

Finance income

Finance expenses

10

11

126 

(20,678)

188 

(19,560)

Net finance costs (20,552) (19,372)

Other losses 12 (96) -

Surplus/(deficit) for the year from continuing operations 442 (46,466)

Surplus/(deficit) for the year 442 (46,466)

Other comprehensive income  

Will not be reclassified to income and expenditure:

Impairments 

Revaluations

6

13

(4,745)

861 

(2,258)

26,123 

Total comprehensive income/(expense) for the period (3,442) (22,601)

Memorandum / Adjusted financial performance (control total basis):

Surplus/(deficit) for the period

Remove net impairments not scoring to the Departmental expenditure limit

Remove I&E impact of capital grants and donations

Remove 2018-19 post audit PSF reallocation (2019-20 only)

6

442 

70 

194 

(656) 

(46,466)

(3,197)

193 

-  

Adjusted financial performance surplus / (deficit) 50 (49,470)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

 
 

Note

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Receivables

 

13

16

 

454,082 

39,795   

 

443,870 

35,923  

Total non-current assets 493,877  479,793 

Current assets

Inventories

Receivables

Non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal groups

Cash and cash equivalents

 

15

16

17

18

 

6,031 

39,141 

407 

33,083 

 

5,435 

33,593 

- 

5,894

Total current assets 78,662  44,922 

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Provisions

Other liabilities

 

19

21

23

20

 

(40,195)

(280,633)

(703)

(3,222)

 

(33,932)

(96,948)

(550)

(3,369)

Total current liabilities (324,753) (134,799)

Total assets less current liabilities 247,786  389,916 

Non-current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Borrowings

Provisions

Other liabilities

 

19

21

23

20

 

(119)

(330,025)

(2,070)

(413)

 

(92)

(473,046)

(1,985)

(493)

Total non-current liabilities (332,627) (475,616)

Total assets employed (84,841) (85,700)

Financed by 

Public dividend capital

Revaluation reserve

Income and expenditure reserve

 

302,850 

84,564 

(472,255)

 

298,549 

88,448 

(472,697)

Total taxpayers’ equity (84,841) (85,700)

The notes on pages 17 to 50 form part of these accounts.

C N Walker
Chief Executive
22 June 2020
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE 
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR 
THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2019

Public 
dividend 

capital 
 £000

 
Revaluation 

reserve 
£000

Income and 
expenditure 

reserve 
£000

 
 

Total 
£000

Taxpayers’ equity at 1 April 2019 - brought forward

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Impairments

Revaluations 

Public dividend capital received

298,549 

- 

- 

- 

4,301 

88,448 

- 

(4,745)

861 

- 

(472,697)

442 

- 

- 

- 

(85,700)

442 

(4,745)

861 

4,301 

Taxpayers’ and others’ equity at 31 March 2020 302,850 84,564 (472,255) (84,841)

Public 
dividend 

capital 
 £000

 
Reval-
uation 
reserve 

£000

Income and 
expenditure 

reserve 
£000

 
 

Total 
£000

Taxpayers’ equity at 1 April 2018 - brought forward

Surplus/(deficit) for the year

Transfers by absorption: transfers between reserves

Impairments

Revaluations 

295,367 

- 

- 

- 

3,182  

64,583 

- 

(2,258)

26,123 

-  

(426,231)

(46,466)

- 

- 

-  

(66,281)

(46,466)

(2,258)

26,123 

3,182  

Taxpayers’ and others’ equity at 31 March 2019 298,549 88,448 (472,697) (85,700)

Information on reserves

Public dividend capital
Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector 
equity finance based on the excess of assets over 
liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor 
NHS organisation. Additional PDC may also be issued  
to Trusts by the Department of Health and Social Care.  
A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the 
Trust, is payable to the Department of Health as the 
public dividend capital dividend, however as North West 
Anglia has negative net assets no dividend is payable.

Revaluation reserve
Increases in asset values arising from revaluations are 
recognised in the revaluation reserve, except where, and 
to the extent that, they reverse impairments previously 
recognised in operating expenses, in which case they are 
recognised in operating income. Subsequent downward 
movements in asset valuations are charged to the 
revaluation reserve to the extent that a previous gain was 
recognised unless the downward movement represents a 
clear consumption of economic benefit or a reduction in 
service potential.

Income and expenditure reserve
The balance of this reserve is the accumulated surpluses 
and deficits of the Trust.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

 
Note

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Cash flows from operating activities

Operating deficit

 

21,090 

 

(27,094)

Non-cash income and expense:

Depreciation and amortisation

Net impairments

Income recognised in respect of capital donations

(Increase)/decrease in receivables and other assets

Increase in inventories

Increase in payables and other liabilities

Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Other movements in operating cash flows

5

6

4

 

 

 

17,218 

70 

(104)

(5,679)

(596)

5,986 

238 

-

16,509 

(3,197)

(121)

15,106 

(50)

926

(57) 

-

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities 38,223  2,022 

Cash flows from investing activities

Interest received

Purchase of PPE and investment property

Sales of PPE and investment property

Receipt of cash donations to purchase assets

10 

 

 

126 

(35,411)

37 

40   

 

188 

(16,700)

- 

121  

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities (35,208) (16,391)

Cash flows from financing activities

Public dividend capital received

Movement on loans from DHSC

Movement on other loans

Capital element of finance lease rental payments 

Capital element of PFI, LIFT and other service concession payments

Interest on loans

Interest paid on finance lease liabilities

Interest paid on PFI, LIFT and other service concession obligations

Cash flows used in other financing activities

 

 

4,301 

51,846 

- 

(570)

(10,671)

(3,571)

(88)

(16,960)

(113) 

 

3,182 

44,589 

(597)

(520)

(10,450)

(2,854)

(106)

(16,467)

-  

Net cash flows from financing activities 24,174 16,777 

Increase in cash and cash equivalents 27,189 2,408 

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April - brought forward 5,894 3,486

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 18 33,083 5,894 
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS 
NOTE 1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
AND OTHER INFORMATION

Note 1.1 Basis of preparation

NHS Improvement, in exercising the statutory functions 
conferred on Monitor, has directed that the financial 
statements of the Trust shall meet the accounting 
requirements of the Department of Health and Social 
Care Group Accounting Manual (GAM), which shall be 
agreed with HM Treasury. Consequently, the following 
financial statements have been prepared in accordance 
with the GAM 2019-20 issued by the Department 
of Health and Social Care. The accounting policies 
contained in the GAM follow International Financial 
Reporting Standards to the extent that they are 
meaningful and appropriate to the NHS, as determined 
by HM Treasury, which is advised by the Financial 
Reporting Advisory Board. Where the GAM permits 
a choice of accounting policy, the accounting policy 
that is judged to be most appropriate to the particular 
circumstances of the Trust for the purpose of giving 
a true and fair view has been selected. The particular 
policies adopted are described below. These have been 
applied consistently in dealing with items considered 
material in relation to the accounts.

Note 1.1.1 Accounting convention

These accounts have been prepared under the  
historical cost convention modified to account for  
the revaluation of property, plant and equipment, 
intangible assets, inventories and certain financial  
assets and financial liabilities.

Note 1.1.2 Going concern

These accounts have been prepared on a going  
concern basis. 

International Accounting Standard (IAS) 1 requires 
management to assess, as part of the accounts 
preparation process, the Trust’s ability to continue as 
a going concern. The financial statements should be 
prepared on a going concern basis unless management 
either intends to apply to the Secretary of State for the 
dissolution of the NHS Foundation Trust without the 
transfer of services to another entity or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Management have considered the 2019-20 financial 
performance and position to inform the assessment:

•	 The Trust achieved the control total for 2019-20, 
recording a financial surplus of £0.4m for the  
2019-20 financial year, an improvement compared  
to a (£46.5m) deficit in 2018-19, 

•	 This includes recognition of provider incentive 
funding (MRET, PSF and FRF) amounting to £35.9m in 
2019-20 as a consequence of the Trust meeting the 
control total set by NHS Improvement.

•	 The Trust delivered a £18.0m cost improvement 
programme against a £18.1m plan for 2019-20.  

•	 The Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 
2020 shows a cumulative deficit (i.e. negative income 
and expenditure reserve) of £472.2m.

•	 As at 31 March 2020 the Trust held a cash balance  
of £33.1m. 

•	 The Trust is not subject to any enforcement action 
with regards to finances.

The 2020-21 draft operational plan submitted by the 
Trust in March 2020 reflected the underlying structural 
deficit. However, the Covid-19 pandemic has resulted 
in emergency funding arrangements being put in place 
by the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) 
and NHS Improvement and England NHSI/E. These have 
had the effect of ensuring that the Trust will receive 
sufficient funding for the duration of the pandemic, 
effectively to achieve breakeven for the period that these 
arrangements are in place. Currently these arrangements 
will cover the period from 1 April to 31 July 2020 and 
guidance is likely to be published in due course about 
how the plan for the remainder of the 2020-21 financial 
year will be prepared and implemented.

On 2 April 2020, the DHSC and NHSI/E announced 
reforms to the NHS cash regime for the 2020-21 
financial year. During 2020-21 existing DHSC interim 
revenue and capital loans as at 31 March 2020 will 
be extinguished and replaced with the issue of Public 
Dividend Capital (PDC) to allow the repayment. The 
affected loans totalling £269m are classified as current 
liabilities within these financial statements. As the 
repayment of these loans will be funded through the 
issue of PDC and reduce the interest and debt repayment 
burden on the Trust and returning the Trust to a positive 
net asset position.

Further, the Trust has been awarded significant capital 
investment to support the redevelopment of the 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital site demonstrating a level of 
confidence in the Trust’s long term future. 

In addition to the matters referred to above the Trust 
has not been informed by the DHSC or NHSI/E that 
there is any prospect of its dissolution within the next 
twelve months and it anticipates the continuation of the 
provision of its services into the foreseeable future. 

It is however clear that outside of the pandemic response 
the Trust continues to operate with an underlying deficit. 
The Trust will continue to work with its partners across 
the local healthcare system to achieve efficiencies, 
maximise the use of its assets and secure a recurrent 
funding settlement with the DHSC and/or NHSI/E to 
achieve long term financial sustainability.   
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After making enquiries, and considering the matters 
described in the preceding paragraphs, the Directors 
have a reasonable expectation that the Trust will have 
access to adequate resources to continue in operational 
existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, 
they continue to adopt the going concern basis in 
preparing the accounts. However the matters referred 
to above represent a material uncertainty that may cast 
significant doubt on the Trust’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, and therefore to continue realising its 
assets and discharging its liabilities in the normal course 
of business. The financial statements do not include 
any adjustment that would result from the basis of 
preparation being inappropriate.

Note 1.1.3  Critical judgements in 
applying accounting policies

The following are the judgements, apart from those 
involving estimations (see below) that management has 
made in the process of applying the Trust’s accounting 
policies and that have the most significant effect on the 
amounts recognised in the financial statements: 
 
An assessment of the Trust’s Private Finance Initiatives 
(PFI) scheme have been made, and it has been 
determined that the PFI schemes should be accounted 
for as an On Statement of Financial Position asset under 
IFRIC 12. This requires a judgement to be made around 
how to model the scheme in order to determine the 
required accounting entries. 
 
Leases have been classified as finance leases where the 
lease transfers substantially all the risks and rewards 
incidental to ownership of the asset, irrespective of 
whether title has actually transferred. An asset and a 
liability are recognised on the balance sheet accordingly. 
Otherwise the lease is classified as an operating lease.

Note 1.1.4 Sources of estimation 
uncertainty

The following are assumptions about the future and 
other major sources of estimation uncertainty that have 
a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment to 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next financial year: 
 
The Trust’s land and building assets are valued on  
the basis explained in Notes 1 & 13 to the accounts. 
Gerald Eve LLP provided a valuation of land and building 
assets (estimated fair value and remaining useful 
life) as at 31 March 2020. The valuation, based on 
estimates provided by a suitably qualified professional 
in accordance with HM Treasury Guidance, leads to 
revaluation adjustments as described in Note 13.  
Future revaluations of North West Anglia NHS 
Foundation Trust’s property may result in further  
changes to the carrying values of non-current assets. 
 
An estimate has also been used to determine total future 
obligations under PFI contracts as disclosed in note 25, 
in relation to future rates of inflation. The estimate does 
not affect the carrying value of liabilities in the Statement 
of Financial Position at 31 March 2020 or 31 March 
2019, or the amounts charged through the Statement  
of Comprehensive Income.

Note 1.2 Operating Segment

The nature of the Trust’s services is the provision of 
healthcare. Accordingly the Trust operates one segment. 
Income and expenditure are analysed and are reported 
in line with management information used within North 
West Anglia NHSFT. 

Note 1.3.1 Revenue grants and other 
contributions to expenditure

Government grants are grants from government bodies 
other than income from commissioners or Trusts for 
the provision of services. Where a grant is used to fund 
revenue expenditure it is taken to the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income to match that expenditure.  
 
The value of the benefit received when accessing 
funds from the Government’s apprenticeship service 
is recognised as income at the point of receipt of the 
training service. Where these funds are paid directly 
to an accredited training provider, the corresponding 
notional expense is also recognised at the point of 
recognition for the benefit.

Note 1.3.2 Revenue from contracts 
with customers

Where income is derived from contracts with 
customers, it is accounted for under IFRS 15. Revenue 
in respect of goods/services provided is recognised 
when (or as) performance obligations are satisfied by 
transferring promised goods/services to the customer 
and is measured at the amount of the transaction price 
allocated to those performance obligations. At the year 
end, the Trust accrues income relating to performance 
obligations satisfied in that year. Where the Trust’s 
entitlement to consideration for those goods or services 
is unconditional a contract receivable will be recognised. 
Where entitlement to consideration is conditional on a 
further factor other than the passage of time, a contract 
asset will be recognised. Where consideration received 
or receivable relates to a performance obligation that is 
to be satisfied in a future period, the income is deferred 
and recognised as a contract liability. 

Note 1.3.3 Revenue from NHS contracts

The main source of income for the Trust is contracts with 
commissioners for health care services. A performance 
obligation relating to delivery of a spell of health care 
is generally satisfied over time as healthcare is received 
and consumed simultaneously by the customer as the 
Trust performs it. The customer in such a contract is the 
commissioner, but the customer benefits as services are 
provided to their patient. Even where a contract could 
be broken down into separate performance obligations, 
healthcare generally aligns with paragraph 22(b) of the 
Standard entailing a delivery of a series of goods or 
services that are substantially the same and have a similar 
pattern of transfer. At the year end, the Trust accrues 
income relating to activity delivered in that year, where a 
patient care spell is incomplete. This accrual is disclosed 
as a contract receivable as entitlement to payment 
for work completed is usually only dependent on the 
passage of time.
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Note 1.3.4 Revenue from  
research contracts

Where research contracts fall under IFRS 15, revenue 
is recognised as and when performance obligations 
are satisfied. For some contracts, it is assessed that the 
revenue project constitutes one performance obligation 
over the course of the multi-year contract. In these 
cases it is assessed that the Trust’s interim performance 
does not create an asset with alternative use for the 
Trust, and the Trust has an enforceable right to payment 
for the performance completed to date. It is therefore 
considered that the performance obligation is satisfied 
over time, and the Trust recognises revenue each year 
over the course of the contract.

Note 1.3.5 NHS injury cost recovery 
scheme

The Trust receives income under the NHS injury cost 
recovery scheme, designed to reclaim the cost of 
treating injured individuals to whom personal injury 
compensation has subsequently been paid, for instance 
by an insurer. The Trust recognises the income when 
performance obligations are satisfied. 

Note 1.3.6 Provider sustainability fund 
(PSF) and Financial recovery fund (FRF)

The PSF and FRF enable providers to earn income 
linked to the achievement of financial controls and 
performance targets. Income earned from the funds is 
accounted for as variable consideration.

Note 1.3.7 Other forms of income

Grants and donations
Government grants are grants from government  
bodies other than income from commissioners or  
Trusts for the provision of services. Where a grant is  
used to fund revenue expenditure it is taken to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income to match that 
expenditure. Donations are treated in the same way as 
government grants.

Note 1.4 Expenditure on employee 
benefits

Short-term employee benefits
Salaries, wages and employment-related payments such 
as social security costs and the apprenticeship levy are 
recognised in the period in which the service is received 
from employees. The cost of annual leave entitlement 
earned but not taken by employees at the end of the 
period is recognised in the financial statements to the 
extent that employees are permitted to carry-forward 
leave into the following period.

Pension costs 
NHS Pension Scheme 
 
Past and present employees are covered by the provisions 
of the two NHS Pension Schemes. Both schemes are 
unfunded, defined benefit schemes that cover NHS 
employers, general practices and other bodies, allowed 
under the direction of Secretary of State for Health 

and Social Care in England and Wales. The scheme is 
not designed in a way that would enable employers 
to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets 
and liabilities. Therefore, the scheme is accounted for 
as though it is a defined contribution scheme: the cost 
to the Trust is taken as equal to the employer’s pension 
contributions payable to the scheme for the accounting 
period. The contributions are charged to operating 
expenses as and when they become due.  
 
Additional pension liabilities arising from early 
retirements are not funded by the scheme except where 
the retirement is due to ill-health. The full amount of 
the liability for the additional costs is charged to the 
operating expenses at the time the Trust commits itself 
to the retirement, regardless of the method of payment. 

Note 1.5 Expenditure on other goods 
and services

Expenditure on goods and services is recognised when, 
and to the extent that they have been received, and is 
measured at the fair value of those goods and services. 
Expenditure is recognised in operating expenses except 
where it results in the creation of a non-current asset 
such as property, plant and equipment.

Note 1.6 Property, plant and 
equipment

Note 1.6.1 Recognition

Property, plant and equipment is capitalised where:

•	 it is held for use in delivering services or for 
administrative purposes

•	 it is probable that future economic benefits will  
flow to, or service potential be provided to, the Trust

•	 it is expected to be used for more than one  
financial year 

•	 the cost of the item can be measured reliably

•	 the item has cost of at least £5,000, or

•	 collectively, a number of items have a cost of at 
least £5,000 and individually have a cost of more 
than £250, where the assets are functionally 
interdependent, had broadly simultaneous purchase 
dates, are anticipated to have similar disposal dates 
and are under single managerial control.

Where a large asset, for example a building, includes a 
number of components with significantly different asset 
lives, e.g. plant and equipment, then these components 
are treated as separate assets and depreciated over their 
own useful lives.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure relating to an item of property, 
plant and equipment is recognised as an increase in the 
carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that 
additional future economic benefits or service potential 
deriving from the cost incurred to replace a component 
of such item will flow to the enterprise and the cost of 
the item can be determined reliably. Where a component 
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of an asset is replaced, the cost of the replacement 
is capitalised if it meets the criteria for recognition 
above. The carrying amount of the part replaced is de-
recognised. Other expenditure that does not generate 
additional future economic benefits or service potential, 
such as repairs and maintenance, is charged to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income in the period in 
which it is incurred.

Note 1.6.2 Measurement

Valuation
All property, plant and equipment assets are measured 
initially at cost, representing the costs directly attributable 
to acquiring or constructing the asset and bringing it to 
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable 
of operating in the manner intended by management.

Assets are measured subsequently at valuation. Assets 
which are held for their service potential and are in use 
(i.e. operational assets used to deliver either front line 
services or back office functions) are measured at their 
current value in existing use. Professional valuations are 
carried out by Gerald Eve LLP, a firm of international 
property consultants. The valuations are carried out 
in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered 
Surveyors (RICS) Appraisal and Valuation Manual 
insofar as these terms are consistent with the agreed 
requirements of the Department of Health and Social 
Care and HM Treasury. In addition, all land and buildings 
are restated to current value using professional valuation 
every five years. An annual interim valuation (desktop 
exercise) is also carried out.

The freehold properties known as North West Anglia 
NHS Foundation Trust was valued as at 31 March 2020 
by an external valuer, Gerald Eve LLP, a regulated firm of 
Chartered Surveyors. The valuations were prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of the RICS Valuation 
– Global Standards, effective January 2020 the national 
standards and guidance set out in the UK national 
supplement (November 2018 edition) the International 
Valuation Standards and IFRS as adapted and interpreted 
by the Financial Reporting Manual (FReM). The 
valuations of specialised properties were derived using 
the Modern Equivalent Asset (MEA) Method, with other 
in-use properties reported using the Market value for 
existing use method.

The valuer has declared a ‘material valuation uncertainty’ 
in the valuation report. This is on the basis of 
uncertainties in markets caused by COVID-19. As at the 
valuation date, Gerald Eve considers that they can attach 
less weight to previous market evidence for comparison 
purposes, to inform opinions of values. The values in the 
report have been used to inform the measurement of 
property assets at valuation in these financial statements. 
With the valuer having declared this material valuation 
uncertainty, the valuer has continued to exercise 
professional judgement in providing the valuation and 
this remains the best information available to the Trust. 

For specialised assets, current value in existing use is 
interpreted as the present value of the asset’s remaining 
service potential, which is assumed to be at least equal 
to the cost of replacing that service potential. Specialised 
assets are therefore valued on a modern equivalent  
asset (MEA) basis. An MEA basis assumes that the asset 
will be replaced with a modern asset of equivalent 

capacity and meeting the location requirements of  
the services being provided.

Properties in the course of construction for service or 
administration purposes are carried at cost, less any 
impairment loss including professional fees.  Assets are 
revalued and depreciation commences when the assets 
are brought into use.

IT equipment, transport equipment, furniture and 
fittings, and plant and machinery that are held for 
operational use are valued at Depreciated Replacement 
Cost (DRC) where these assets have short useful lives 
or low values or both, as this is not considered to be 
materially different from current value in existing use. 

Depreciation
Items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated 
over their remaining useful lives in a manner consistent 
with the consumption of economic or service delivery 
benefits. Depreciation is charged from the beginning 
of the quarter following the date at which certification 
confirms the asset is available for use in the manner 
intended by management. Freehold land is considered  
to have an infinite life and is not depreciated.  
 
Property, plant and equipment which has been 
reclassified as ‘held for sale’ cease to be depreciated 
upon the reclassification. Assets in the course of 
construction and residual interests in off-Statement of 
Financial Position PFI contract assets are not depreciated 
until the asset is brought into use or reverts to the  
Trust, respectively. 

Revaluation gains and losses
Revaluation gains are recognised in the revaluation 
reserve, except where, and to the extent that, they 
reverse a revaluation decrease that has previously been 
recognised in operating expenses, in which case they  
are recognised in operating expenditure. 
 
Revaluation losses are charged to the revaluation  
reserve to the extent that there is an available balance 
for the asset concerned, and thereafter are charged to 
operating expenses.  
 
Gains and losses recognised in the revaluation reserve 
are reported in the Statement of Comprehensive Income 
as an item of ‘other comprehensive income’.

Impairments
In accordance with the GAM, impairments that arise 
from a clear consumption of economic benefits or of 
service potential in the asset are charged to operating 
expenses. A compensating transfer is made from the 
revaluation reserve to the income and expenditure 
reserve of an amount equal to the lower of (i) the 
impairment charged to operating expenses; and (ii) the 
balance in the revaluation reserve attributable to that 
asset before the impairment. 
 
An impairment that arises from a clear consumption 
of economic benefit or of service potential is reversed 
when, and to the extent that, the circumstances 
that gave rise to the loss are reversed. Reversals are 
recognised in operating expenditure to the extent that 
the asset is restored to the carrying amount it would 
have had if the impairment had never been recognised. 
Any remaining reversal is recognised in the revaluation 
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reserve. Where, at the time of the original impairment, 
a transfer was made from the revaluation reserve to 
the income and expenditure reserve, an amount is 
transferred back to the revaluation reserve when the 
impairment reversal is recognised. 

Other impairments are treated as revaluation losses. 
Reversals of ‘other impairments’ are treated as 
revaluation gains.

Note 1.6.3 De-recognition

Assets intended for disposal are reclassified as ‘held 
for sale’ once all of the following criteria are met. The 
sale must be highly probable and the asset available for 
immediate sale in its present condition.

Following reclassification, the assets are measured at 
the lower of their existing carrying amount and their 
‘fair value less costs to sell’. Depreciation ceases to be 
charged. Assets are de-recognised when all material sale 
contract conditions have been met. 
 
Property, plant and equipment which is to be scrapped 
or demolished does not qualify for recognition as ‘held 
for sale’ and instead is retained as an operational asset 
and the asset’s useful life is adjusted. The asset is de-
recognised when scrapping or demolition occurs.

Note 1.6.4 Donated and grant funded 
assets

Donated and grant funded property, plant and 
equipment assets are capitalised at their fair value on 
receipt. The donation/grant is credited to income at the 
same time, unless the donor has imposed a condition 
that the future economic benefits embodied in the grant 
are to be consumed in a manner specified by the donor, 
in which case, the donation/grant is deferred within 
liabilities and is carried forward to future financial years 
to the extent that the condition has not yet been met. 
 
The donated and grant funded assets are subsequently 
accounted for in the same manner as other items of 
property, plant and equipment.

Note 1.6.5 Private Finance Initiative 
(PFI) and Local Improvement Finance 
Trust (LIFT) transactions		

PFI transactions which meet the IFRIC 12 definition of 
a service concession, as interpreted in HM Treasury’s 
FReM, are accounted for as ‘on-Statement of Financial 
Position’ by the Trust. In accordance with HM Treasury’s 
FReM, the underlying assets are recognised as property, 
plant and equipment, together with an equivalent 
liability. Subsequently, the assets are accounted for as 
property, plant and equipment and/or intangible assets 
as appropriate. 
 
The annual contract payments are apportioned between 
the repayment of the liability, a finance cost, the charges 
for services and lifecycle replacement of components of 
the asset.

Service received 
The service charge is recognised under the relevant 
expenditure headings within ‘operating expenses’. 

PFI assets
The PFI assets are recognised as property, plant and 
equipment, when they come into use. The assets are 
measured at fair value in accordance with the Trust’s 
approach for each relevant class of asset in accordance 
with the principles of IAS 16.		

PFI liability
A PFI liability is recognised at the same time as the PFI 
assets are recognised. It is measured initially at the 
same amount as the fair value of the PFI assets and 
is subsequently measured as a finance lease liability 
in accordance with IAS 17. The annual finance cost is 
calculated by applying the implicit interest rate in the 
lease to the opening lease liability for the period, and 
is charged to ‘Finance Costs’ within the Statement of 
Comprehensive Income.  The element of the unitary 
payment that is allocated as a finance lease rental 
is applied to meet the annual finance cost and to 
repay the lease liability over the contract term.  An 
element of the annual unitary payment increases due 
to cumulative indexation is allocated to the finance 
lease. In accordance with IAS 17, this amount is not 
included in the minimum lease payments, but is instead 
treated as contingent rent and is expensed as incurred. 
In substance, this amount is a finance cost in respect of 
the liability and the expense is presented as a contingent 
finance cost in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Lifecycle replacement
Components of the asset replaced by the operator 
during the contract (‘lifecycle replacement’) are 
capitalised where they meet the Trust’s criteria for capital 
expenditure. They are capitalised at the time they are 
provided by the operator and are measured initially 
at cost. The element of the annual unitary payment 
allocated to lifecycle replacement is pre-determined for 
each year of the contract from the operator’s planned 
programme of lifecycle replacement.  This charge is used 
to establish a prepayment to fund future replacement.	

Asset contributed by North West Anglia NHS FT to 
the operator for use in the scheme
Assets contributed for use in the scheme continue to be 
recognised as items of property, plant and equipment in 
North West Anglia NHS FT Statement of Financial Position.
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Note 1.6.6 Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Useful lives reflect the total life of an asset and not the remaining life of an asset. The range of useful lives are shown in 
the table below:

Min life 
Years

Max life 
Years

Land

Buildings, excluding dwellings

Dwellings

Plant & machinery

Transport equipment

Information technology

Furniture & fittings

- 

4 

15 

2 

10 

2 

5 

- 

95 

98 

33 

10 

20 

10 

Finance-leased assets (including land) are depreciated over the shorter of the useful life or the lease term, unless the Trust 
expects to acquire the asset at the end of the lease term in which case the assets are depreciated in the same manner as 
owned assets above.

Note 1.7 Intangible assets 

North West Anglia NHS Foundaation Trust does not hold 
any intangible assets

Note 1.8 Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net 
realisable value. The cost of inventories is measured 
using the first in, first out (FIFO) method.

Note 1.9 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash is cash in hand and deposits with any financial 
institution repayable without penalty on notice of not 
more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments 
that mature in 3 months or less from the date of 
acquisition and that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change  
in value. 
 
In the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash 
equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafts that are 
repayable on demand and that form an integral part of 
the Trust’s cash management. Cash, bank and overdraft 
balances are recorded at current values.

Note 1.10 Financial assets and financial 
liabilities	

Recognition
Financial assets and financial liabilities arise where the 
Trust is party to the contractual provisions of a financial 
instrument, and as a result has a legal right to receive 
or a legal obligation to pay cash or another financial 
instrument. The GAM expands the definition of a 
contract to include legislation and regulations which give 
rise to arrangements that in all other respects would be a 
financial instrument and do not give rise to transactions 
classified as a tax by ONS.

This includes the purchase or sale of non-financial items 
(such as goods or services), which are entered into in 
accordance with the Trust’s normal purchase, sale or 
usage requirements and are recognised when, and  

to the extent which, performance occurs, ie, when 
receipt or delivery of the goods or services is made.

Classification and measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially 
measured at fair value plus or minus directly attributable 
transaction costs except where the asset or liability is not 
measured at fair value through income and expenditure. 
Fair value is taken as the transaction price, or otherwise 
determined by reference to quoted market prices or 
valuation techniques.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at  
amortised cost	
Financial assets and financial liabilities at amortised 
cost are those held with the objective of collecting 
contractual cash flows and where cash flows are solely 
payments of principal and interest. This includes cash 
equivalents, contract and other receivables, trade and 
other payables, rights and obligations under lease 
arrangements and loans receivable and payable. 

After initial recognition, these financial assets and 
financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using 
the effective interest method less any impairment (for 
financial assets). The effective interest rate is the rate 
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments  
or receipts through the expected life of the financial 
asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount  
of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a  
financial liability.

Interest revenue or expense is calculated by applying the 
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of 
a financial asset or amortised cost of a financial liability 
and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income and a financing income or expense.

In the case of loans held from the Department of Health 
and Social Care, these are not held for trading purposes 
and are measured at historic cost with any unpaid 
interest accrued separately. The effective interest rate  
is the nominal rate of interest charged on the loan. 	
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Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets 
with fixed or determinable payments which are not 
quoted in an active market. They are included as current 
assets. The Trust’s loans and receivables comprise: cash 
and cash equivalents, NHS receivables (debtors), accrued 
income and ‘other receivables’ (debtors). Loans and 
receivables are recognised initially at fair value, net of 
transaction costs, and are measured subsequently at 
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method. 
The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts 
exactly estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial asset or, when appropriate, 
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the 
financial asset. Interest on loans and receivables is 
calculated using the effective interest method and 
credited to the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Loans from the Department of Health and  
Social Care
Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 
are not held for trading purposes and are measured at 
historic cost, with any unpaid interest accrued separately.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair 
value, net of transaction costs incurred, and measured 
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective 
interest rate method. The effective interest rate is the 
rate that discounts exactly future cash payments through 
the expected life of the financial liability or, when 
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount 
of the financial liability. They are included in current 
liabilities except for amounts payable more than 12 
months after the balance sheet date, which are classified 
as non-current liabilities. Interest on financial liabilities 
carried at amortised cost is calculated using the effective 
interest method and charged to Finance Costs. Interest 
of financial liabilities taken out to finance property, plant 
and equipment or intangible assets is not capitalised as 
part of those assets. 

Impairment of financial assets
For all financial assets measured at amortised cost 
including lease receivables, contract receivables and 
contract assets or assets measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income, the Trust recognises an 
allowance for expected credit losses. 

The Trust adopts the simplified approach to impairment 
for contract and other receivables, contract assets and 
lease receivables, measuring expected losses as at an 
amount equal to lifetime expected losses. For other 
financial assets, the loss allowance is initially measured 
at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses 
(stage 1) and subsequently at an amount equal to 
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk assessed 
for the financial asset significantly increases (stage 2).

For financial assets that have become credit impaired 
since initial recognition (stage 3), expected credit losses 
at the reporting date are measured as the difference 
between the asset’s gross carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted 
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. 

Expected losses are charged to operating expenditure 
within the Statement of Comprehensive Income and 
reduce the net carrying value of the financial asset in the 
Statement of Financial Position.

Derecognition
Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual 
rights to receive cash flows from the assets have expired 
or the Trust has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the obligation 
is discharged, cancelled or expires.

Note 1.11 Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases when  
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are 
transferred to the lessee. All other leases are classified  
as operating leases.

The Trust as a lessee

Finance leases
Where substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of a leased asset are borne by the Trust, the asset 
is recorded as property, plant and equipment and a 
corresponding liability is recorded. The value at which 
both are recognised is the lower of the fair value of 
the asset or the present value of the minimum lease 
payments, discounted using the interest rate implicit 
in the lease. The implicit interest rate is that which 
produces a constant periodic rate of interest on the 
outstanding liability. 
 
The asset and liability are recognised at the 
commencement of the lease. Thereafter the asset  
is accounted for as an item of property plant  
and equipment.  
 
The annual rental charge is split between the repayment 
of the liability and a finance cost so as to achieve a 
constant rate of finance over the life of the lease. The 
annual finance cost is charged to finance costs in the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an  
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
Lease incentives are recognised initially in other liabilities 
on the statement of financial position and subsequently 
as a reduction of rentals on a straight-line basis over the 
lease term. 	

Contingent rents are recognised as an expense in the 
period in which they are incurred.

Leases of land and buildings
Where a lease is for land and buildings, the land 
component is separated from the building component 
and the classification for each is assessed separately. 
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The Trust as a lessor

Finance leases
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are 
recorded as receivables at the amount of the Trust’s 
net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is 
allocated to accounting periods to reflect a constant 
periodic rate of return on the Trust’s net investment 
outstanding in respect of the leases.

Operating leases
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Initial direct 
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating 
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased 
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

Nominal rate

Short-term

Medium-term

Long-term

Up to 5 years

After 5 years up to 10 years

Exceeding 10 years

0.51%

0.55%

1.99% 

Inflation rate

Year 1

Year 2

Into perpetuity

1.90%

2.00%

2.00% 

HM Treasury provides discount rates for general provisions on a nominal rate basis. Expected future cash flows are 
therefore adjusted for the impact of inflation before discounting using nominal rates. The following inflation rates are set 
by HM Treasury, effective 31 March 2020:

Note 1.12 Provisions 

The Trust recognises a provision where it has a present legal or constructive obligation of uncertain timing or amount; for 
which it is probable that there will be a future outflow of cash or other resources; and a reliable estimate can be made of 
the amount. The amount recognised in the Statement of Financial Position is the best estimate of the resources required 
to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of money is significant, the estimated risk-adjusted cash flows 
are discounted using HM Treasury’s discount rates effective for 31 March 2020:

Early retirement provisions and injury benefit provisions 
both use the HM Treasury’s pension discount rate of 
minus 0.5% in real terms.

Clinical negligence costs

NHS Resolution operates a risk pooling scheme under 
which the Trust pays an annual contribution to NHS 
Resolution, which, in return, settles all clinical negligence 
claims. Although NHS Resolution is administratively 
responsible for all clinical negligence cases, the legal 
liability remains with the Trust. The total value of clinical 
negligence provisions carried by NHS Resolution on 
behalf of the Trust is disclosed at note 23.1 but is not 
recognised in the Trust’s accounts. 

Non-clinical risk pooling

The Trust participates in the Property Expenses Scheme 
and the Liabilities to Third Parties Scheme. Both are risk 
pooling schemes under which the Trust pays an annual 
contribution to NHS Resolution and in return receives 
assistance with the costs of claims arising. The annual 
membership contributions, and any excesses payable 
in respect of particular claims are charged to operating 
expenses when the liability arises.

Note 1.13 Contingencies

Contingent assets (that is, assets arising from past events 
whose existence will only be confirmed by one or more 
future events not wholly within the entity’s control) 
are not recognised as assets. North West Anglia NHS 
Foundation Trust does not have any contigent assets.  
 
Contingent liabilities are defined as:

•	 possible obligations arising from past events whose 
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the entity’s control; or

•	 present obligations arising from past events but  
for which it is not probable that a transfer of 
economic benefits will arise or for which the  
amount of the obligation cannot be measured  
with sufficient reliability.

The Trust has disclosed the contigent liabilities in Note 24. 
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Note 1.14 Public dividend capital

Public dividend capital (PDC) is a type of public sector 
equity finance based on the excess of assets over 
liabilities at the time of establishment of the predecessor 
NHS organisation. HM Treasury has determined that  
PDC is not a financial instrument within the meaning of 
IAS 32. 

The Secretary of State can issue new PDC to, and require 
repayments of PDC from, the Trust. PDC is recorded at 
the value received.

A charge, reflecting the cost of capital utilised by the 
Trust, is payable as public dividend capital dividend. 
The charge is calculated at the rate set by HM Treasury 
(currently 3.5%) on the average relevant net assets of 
the Trust during the financial year. Relevant net assets are 
calculated as the value of all assets less the value of all 
liabilities, except for 

(i) donated and grant funded assets, 

(ii) average daily cash balances held with the 
Government Banking Services (GBS) and National Loans 
Fund (NLF) deposits, excluding cash balances held in 
GBS accounts that relate to a short-term working capital 
facility, and 

(iii) any PDC dividend balance receivable or payable. 

In accordance with the requirements laid down by the 
Department of Health and Social Care (as the issuer 
of PDC), the dividend for the year is calculated on the 
actual average relevant net assets as set out in the “pre-
audit” version of the annual accounts. The dividend 
calculated is not revised should any adjustment to net 
assets occur as a result the audit of the annual accounts.                                                                                                                                        
As at 31 March 2020, North West Anglia NHS FT has 
negative net assets and so no dividend is payable.

Note 1.15 Value added tax

Most of the activities of the Trust are outside the scope 
of VAT and, in general, output tax does not apply and 
input tax on purchases is not recoverable. Irrecoverable 
VAT is charged to the relevant expenditure category or 
included in the capitalised purchase cost of fixed assets. 
Where output tax is charged or input VAT is recoverable, 
the amounts are stated net of VAT.

Note 1.16 Corporation tax

The main rate of Corporation Tax applies when profits on 
trading activities exceed £1.5m at a rate of 20% (value 
and rate set for 2015-16 by HM Revenue and Customs).  
Section 148 of the Finance Act 2004 amended s519A 
of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 to 
provide power to the Treasury to make certain noncore 
activities of Foundation Trusts potentially subject to 
corporation tax. This legislation became effective in the 
2005/06 financial year. In determining whether or not 
an activity is likely to be taxable, a three-stage test may 
be employed. The provision of goods and services for 
purposes related to the provision of healthcare is not 
treated as a commercial activity and is therefore tax 
exempt. Trading activities undertaken in house, which 
are ancillary to core healthcare, are not subject to tax.

As trading activities do not include provision of NHS 
healthcare services provided by the Trust, North West 
Anglia NHS Foundation Trust had no Corporation Tax 
liability in 2019-20 according to current legislation. 

Note 1.17 Third party assets

Assets belonging to third parties in which the Trust  
has no beneficial interest (such as money held on behalf 
of patients) are not recognised in the accounts. However, 
they are disclosed in a separate note to the accounts in 
accordance with the requirements of HM Treasury’s FReM.

Note 1.18 Losses and special payments

Losses and special payments are items that Parliament 
would not have contemplated when it agreed funds 
for the health service or passed legislation. By their 
nature they are items that ideally should not arise. 
They are therefore subject to special control procedures 
compared with the generality of payments. They are 
divided into different categories, which govern the 
way that individual cases are handled. Losses and 
special payments are charged to the relevant functional 
headings in expenditure on an accruals basis. 
 
The losses and special payments note is compiled  
directly from the losses and compensations register 
which reports on an accrual basis with the exception  
of provisions for future losses.

Note 1.19 Gifts

Gifts are items that are voluntarily donated, with no 
preconditions and without the expectation of any return. 
Gifts include all transactions economically equivalent to 
free and unremunerated transfers, such as the loan of  
an asset for its expected useful life, and the sale or lease 
of assets at below market value.

Note 1.20 Early adoption of standards, 
amendments and interpretations

No new accounting standards or revisions to existing 
standards have been early adopted in 2019-20.	

Note 1.21 Standards, amendments and 
interpretations in issue but not yet 
effective or adopted

IFRS 16 Leases	
IFRS 16 Leases will replace IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 
Determining whether an arrangement contains a 
lease and other interpretations and is applicable in 
the public sector for periods beginning 1 April 2021.  
The standard provides a single accounting model for 
lessees, recognising a right of use asset and obligation 
in the statement of financial position for most leases: 
some leases are exempt through application of practical 
expedients explained below. For those recognised in 
the statement of financial position the standard also 
requires the remeasurement of lease liabilities in specific 
circumstances after the commencement of the lease 
term. For lessors, the distinction between operating and 
finance leases will remain and the accounting will be 
largely unchanged.	
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IFRS 16 changes the definition of a lease compared to 
IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Trust will apply this definition 
to new leases only and will grandfather its assessments 
made under the old standards of whether existing 
contracts contain a lease.	

On transition to IFRS 16 on 1 April 2021, the Trust will 
apply the standard retrospectively with the cumulative 
effect of initially applying the standard recognised in 
the income and expenditure reserve at that date. For 
existing operating leases with a remaining lease term of 
more than 12 months and an underlying asset value of 
at least £5,000, a lease liability will be recognised equal 
to the value of remaining lease payments discounted 
on transition at the Trust’s incremental borrowing rate. 
The Trust’s incremental borrowing rate will be defined by 
HM Treasury. Currently this rate is 1.27% but this may 
change between now and adoption of the standard. The 
related right of use asset will be measured equal to the 
lease liability adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease 
payments. No adjustments will be made on 1 April 2021 
for existing finance leases.	

For leases commencing in 2021-22, the Trust will not 
recognise a right of use asset or lease liability for short 
term leases (less than or equal to 12 months) or for 
leases of low value assets (less than £5,000).  Right of 
use assets will be subsequently measured on a basis 
consistent with owned assets and depreciated over the 
length of the lease term. 	

The Trust will commence work to understand the impact 
of the new standard during 2020-21.	

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 	

IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts and seeks 
to standardise insurance accounting globally to improve 
comparability and increase transparency, and to provide 
users of accounts with the information they need to 
meaningfully understand the insurer’s financial position, 
performance and risk exposure. The IASB has deferred 
the effective date of IFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, to 
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2023. IFRS 17 as interpreted and adapted by the FReM is 
to be effective from 1 April 2023. 	

The Trust has not yet commenced work to understand 
the impact of the new standard. 	
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NOTE 2 OPERATING SEGMENTS 

IFRS 8 requires the disclosure of results of significant operating segments; the Trust considers that it only has one operating 
segment, healthcare.
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NOTE 3 OPERATING INCOME FROM PATIENT 
CARE ACTIVITIES 

Note 3.1 Income from patient care activities (by nature)

Note 3.2 Income from patient care activities (by source)

Income from patient care activities received from:

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Acute services 

Elective income 

Non elective income 

First outpatient income 

Follow up outpatient income 

A&E income 

High cost drugs income from commissioners (excluding pass-through costs)

Other NHS clinical income

 

64,273 

114,472 

32,811 

32,001 

24,823 

34,667 

109,597    

 

59,605 

97,992 

31,613 

28,554 

20,286 

32,116 

103,806   

All services

Private patient income 

Agenda for Change pay award central funding*

Additional pension contribution central funding**

Other clinical income

 

1,035 

- 

11,797 

3,796  

 

1,754 

4,060 

- 

1,296  

Total income from activities 429,272   381,082  

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Income from patient care activities received from:

NHS England

Clinical commissioning groups

Department of Health and Social Care

Other NHS providers

Non-NHS: private patients 

Non-NHS: overseas patients (chargeable to patient) 

Injury cost recovery scheme

 

58,089 

367,897 

20 

891 

1,035 

148 

1,192   

 

44,993

328,517 

4,060 

462  

1,754 

224 

1,072 

Total income from activities 429,272  381,082 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations

 

429,272   

 

381,082  

*Additional costs of the Agenda for Change pay reform in 2018-19 received central funding. From 2019-20 this funding 
is incorporated into tariff for individual services.

**The employer contribution rate for NHS pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% (excluding administration charge) 
from 1 April 2019. For 2019-20, NHS providers continued to pay over contributions at the former rate with the additional 
amount being paid over by NHS England on providers' behalf. The full cost and related funding have been recognised in 
these accounts.

Note 3.3 Overseas visitors (relating to patients charged directly by the provider)

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Income recognised this year

Cash payments received in-year 

Amounts added to provision for impairment of receivables 

Amounts written off in-year

148 

115 

160 

35    

224 

143 

148 

46   
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NOTE 4 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2019-20

Contract 
income 

£000

Non-contract 
income 

£000

 
Total 
£000

Research and development

Education and training

Non-patient care services to other bodies

Provider sustainability fund (PSF)

Financial recovery fund (FRF)

Marginal rate emergency tariff funding (MRET)

Income in respect of employee benefits accounted on a gross basis

Receipt of capital grants and donations

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure

Support from the Department of Health and Social Care for mergers

Rental revenue from finance leases

Rental revenue from operating leases

Amortisation of PFI deferred income / credits

Other income

1,252 

13,460 

- 

9,656 

20,440 

5,810 

3,027 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

37,422 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

104 

359 

- 

- 

611 

- 

- 

1,252 

13,460 

- 

9,656 

20,440 

5,810 

3,027 

104 

359 

- 

- 

611 

- 

37,422  

Total other operating income 91,067 1,074 92,141 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations

Related to discontinued operations

 

92,141 

-

2018-19

Contract 
income 

£000

Non-contract 
income 

£000

 
Total 
£000

Research and development

Education and training

Non-patient care services to other bodies

Provider sustainability fund (PSF)

Financial recovery fund (FRF)

Marginal rate emergency tariff funding (MRET)

Income in respect of employee benefits accounted on a gross basis

Receipt of capital grants and donations

Charitable and other contributions to expenditure

Support from the Department of Health and Social Care for mergers

Rental revenue from finance leases

Rental revenue from operating leases

Amortisation of PFI deferred income / credits

Other income

1,444 

11,966 

136 

11,797 

- 

- 

3,634 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

24,510  

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

121 

- 

- 

- 

1,223 

- 

- 

1,444 

11,966 

136 

11,797 

- 

- 

3,634 

121 

- 

- 

- 

1,223 

- 

24,510   

Total other operating income 53,487 1,344 54,831 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations

Related to discontinued operations

 

54,831 

- 
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Note 4.1 Income from activities arising from commissioner requested services

Under the terms of its provider licence, the Trust is required to analyse the level of income from activities that has arisen 
from commissioner requested and non-commissioner requested services. Commissioner requested services are defined 
in the provider licence and are services that commissioners believe would need to be protected in the event of provider 
failure. This information is provided in the table below:

Note 4.2 Additional information on contract revenue (IFRS 15) recognised in 
the period

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Income from services designated as commissioner requested services

Income from services not designated as commissioner requested services

412,644 

16,628 

373,972 

7,110 

Total 429,272     381,082     

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Revenue recognised in the reporting period that was included in within contract  
liabilities at the previous period end

Revenue recognised from performance obligations satisfied (or partially satisfied)  
in prevous periods

3,369  

 

3,222  

2,699  

 

2,796  
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NOTE 5 OPERATING EXPENSES 

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Purchase of healthcare from NHS and DHSC bodies
Purchase of healthcare from non-NHS and non-DHSC bodies
Staff and executive directors costs*
Remuneration of non-executive directors
Supplies and services - clinical (excluding drugs costs)
Supplies and services - general 
Drug costs (drugs inventory consumed and purchase of non-inventory drugs)
Consultancy costs
Establishment 
Premises 
Transport (including patient travel)
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Net impairments
Movement in credit loss allowance: contract receivables / contract assets
Increase/(decrease) in other provisions
Audit fees payable to the external auditor

audit services- statutory audit
other auditor remuneration (external auditor only)

Internal audit costs
Clinical negligence
Legal fees
Insurance
Education and training
Rentals under operating leases
Charges to operating expenditure for on-SoFP IFRIC 12 schemes (e.g. PFI / LIFT)
Car parking & security
Hospitality 
Losses, ex gratia & special payments
Other services, eg external payroll
Other

425 
1,948 

316,159 
130 

35,690 
5,505 

48,316 
481 

9,098 
18,080 
2,120 

17,218 
70 

245 
- 

65 
10 

153 
15,766 
1,094 

81 
798 
698 

24,440 
16 
23 

- 
258 

1,436 

- 
1,957 

285,554 
132 

35,705 
6,927 

45,344 
749 

9,003 
18,601 
1,796 

16,509 
(3,197)

180 
240 

65 
10 

131 
16,008 

501 
79 

491 
973 

23,924 
17 
22 
26 

273 
987 

Total 500,323 463,007 

Of which:

Related to continuing operations

 

500,323  

 

463,007  

*Staff & Executive Directors costs has increased in 2019-20. This is in part due to higher costs as a result of the 
implementation of the Agenda for Change Pay deal. 

In addition the employer contribution rate for NHS pensions increased from 14.3% to 20.6% (excluding administration 
charge) from 1 April 2019. For 2019-20, NHS providers continued to pay over contributions at the former rate with the 
additional amount being paid over by NHS England on providers’ behalf. The full cost and related funding have been 
recognised in these accounts.

The limitation on auditor’s liability for external audit work is £1m (2018-19: £1m).

Note 5.1 Other auditor remuneration 

Note 5.2 Limitation on auditor’s liability

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Other auditor remuneration paid to the external auditor:
Other non-audit services not falling within items 2 to 7 above 10 

 
10 

Total 10 10 
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NOTE 7 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 

NOTE 6 IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS 

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Salaries and wages
Social security costs 
Apprenticeship levy
Employer’s contributions to NHS pensions 
Pension cost - other
Temporary staff (including agency)

234,335 
24,447 
1,194 

38,882 
141 

19,569  

217,349 
22,003 
1,079 

24,581 
33 

22,332  

Total gross staff costs 318,568      287,377   

Recoveries in respect of seconded staff - -

Total staff costs 318,568      287,377   

Of which:

Costs capitalised as part of assets

 

2,409   

 

1,823   

Note 7.1 Retirements due to ill-health

Note 7.2 Directors’ pay is disclosed in the Trust’s Annual Report 

During 2019-20 there was 1 early retirement from the Trust agreed on the grounds of ill-health (2 in the year ended 31 
March 2019). The estimated additional pension liabilities of these ill-health retirements is £99k (£12k in 2018-19).

These estimated costs are calculated on an average basis and will be borne by the NHS Pension Scheme.		
	

Details of Directors’ pay is disclosed in the Trust’s Annual Report.

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Net impairments charged to operating surplus/deficit resulting from:

Changes in market price

 

70 

 

(3,197)

Total net impairments charged to operating surplus/deficit 70 (3,197)  

Impairments charged to the revaluation reserve 4,745 2,258    

Total net impairments 4,815 (939)
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NOTE 8 PENSION COSTS

a) Accounting valuation

Past and present employees are covered by the provisions of the two NHS Pension Schemes.  Details of the benefits 
payable and rules of the Schemes can be found on the NHS Pensions website at www.nhsbsa.nhs.uk/pensions.  Both are 
unfunded defined benefit schemes that cover NHS employers, GP practices and other bodies, allowed under the direction 
of the Secretary of State in England and Wales. They are not designed to be run in a way that would enable NHS bodies 
to identify their share of the underlying scheme assets and liabilities. Therefore, each scheme is accounted for as if it 
were a defined contribution scheme: the cost to the NHS body of participating in each scheme is taken as equal to the 
contributions payable to that scheme for the accounting period.  

In order that the defined benefit obligations recognised in the financial statements do not differ materially from those 
that would be determined at the reporting date by a formal actuarial valuation, the FReM requires that “the period 
between formal valuations shall be four years, with approximate assessments in intervening years.” An outline of  
these follows:

A valuation of scheme liability is carried out annually by the scheme actuary (currently the Government Actuary’s 
Department) as at the end of the reporting period. This utilises an actuarial assessment for the previous accounting period 
in conjunction with updated membership and financial data for the current reporting period, and is accepted as providing 
suitably robust figures for financial reporting purposes. The valuation of the scheme liability as at 31 March 2020, is based 
on valuation data as at 31 March 2019, updated to 31 March 2020 with summary global member and accounting data. 
In undertaking this actuarial assessment, the methodology prescribed in IAS 19, relevant FReM interpretations, and the 
discount rate prescribed by HM Treasury have also been used.

The latest assessment of the liabilities of the scheme is contained in the report of the scheme actuary, which forms part 
of the annual NHS Pension Scheme Accounts. These accounts can be viewed on the NHS Pensions website and are 
published annually. Copies can also be obtained from The Stationery Office.

b) Full actuarial (funding) valuation

The purpose of this valuation is to assess the level of liability in respect of the benefits due under the schemes (taking into 
account recent demographic experience), and to recommend contribution rates payable by employees and employers. 

The latest actuarial valuation undertaken for the NHS Pension Scheme was completed as at 31 March 2016. The results 
of this valuation set the employer contribution rate payable from April 2019 at 20.6%, and the Scheme Regulations were 
amended accordingly.

The 2016 funding valuation was also expected to test the cost of the Scheme relative to the employer cost cap set 
following the 2012 valuation. Following a judgment from the Court of Appeal in December 2018 Government 
announced a pause to that part of the valuation process pending conclusion of the continuing legal process.

National Employment Savings Trust (NEST)

NEST is a Workplace Pension Scheme operated by the Government; it is an alternative pension scheme (to the 
Superannuation Scheme) which is not NHS specific. It is a defined contribution, off statement of financial position scheme 
(as it is not exclusively NHS). The number of employees opting in, and the value of contributions, have been negligible. 
The cost in 2019-20 was £141k (2018-19 £33k).
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NOTE 9 OPERATING LEASES 

Note 9.1 North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust as a lessor

Note 9.2 North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust as a lessee

This note discloses income generated in operating lease agreements where North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust is 
the lessor.

The Trust leases part of its accommodation to other NHS bodies and the Cambridgeshire Constabulary.

This note discloses costs and commitments incurred in operating lease arrangements where North West Anglia NHS 
Foundation Trust is the lessee.

The Trust has lease agreements predominantly for the lease of medical equipment. The rentals are fixed and there is no 
contingent rent. The renewals are arranged based on the terms of each individual lease.

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Operating lease revenue
Minimum lease receipts

 
611 

  
1,223  

Total 611 1,223 

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Future minimum lease receipts due: 

- not later than one year;

- later than one year and not later than five years;

- later than five years.

  
611 

1,764 
4,878    

  
1,162 
1,765 
5,353   

Total 7,253   8,280  

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Operating lease revenue
Minimum lease receipts

 
698 

  
973   

Total 698 973  

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Future minimum lease receipts due: 

- not later than one year;

- later than one year and not later than five years;

- later than five years.

  
727 

1,494 
782     

 
973 

2,239 
73 

Total 3,003    3,285    

Future minimum sublease payments to be received - -
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NOTE 10 FINANCE INCOME 

Finance income represents interest received on assets and investments in the period.

Note 11.1 The late payment of commercial debts (interest) Act 1998 / Public 
Contract Regulations 2015 

Finance expenditure represents interest and other charges involved in the borrowing of money or asset financing.

NOTE 11 FINANCE EXPENDITURE 

NOTE 12 OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES)

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Interest on bank accounts

Other finance income

126 

-  

92 

96 

Total finance income 126      188     

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Losses on disposal of assets (96) - 

Total gains / (losses) on disposal of assets (96) - 

Total other gains / (losses) (96) - 

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Interest expense:

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care 

Finance leases 

Main finance costs on PFI and LIFT schemes obligations

Contingent finance costs on PFI and  LIFT scheme obligations

 

3,630 

88 

9,791 

7,169  

 

2,985 

107 

10,167 

6,301  

Total finance costs 20,678  19,560       

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Total liability accruing in year under this legislation as a result of late payments

Amounts included within interest payable arising from claims made under this legislation

- 

-  

- 

-
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NOTE 14 DONATIONS OF PROPERTY, 
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTE 15 INVENTORIES

NOTE 16 RECEIVABLES

North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust received donations of medical equipment during the year of £40k  
(2018-19 £121k).

Inventories recognised in expenses for the year were £0k (2018-19: £295k). Write-down of inventories recognised as 
expenses for the year were £0k (2018-19: £0k).

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Drugs

Consumables

Energy

2,356 

3,598 

77   

2,169 

3,192 

74  

Total inventories 6,031   5,435  

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Current

Contract receivables

Allowance for impaired contract receivables / assets

Prepayments (non-PFI)

PFI lifecycle prepayments 

VAT receivable

Other receivables

 

31,033 

(1,329)

2,223 

4,847 

2,327 

40  

 

23,899 

(1,134)

3,032 

5,005 

2,724 

67  

Total current receivables 39,141 33,593 

Non-current

Contract receivables

PFI lifecycle prepayments 

 

1,848 

37,947 

1,718 

34,205 

Total non-current receivables 39,795 35,923 

Of which receivable from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current

 

27,684 

 

19,796 
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Note 16.1 Allowances for credit losses

2019-20 2018-19

Contract  
receivables 

 and contract 
assets 
£000

 
All other  

receivables 
£000

Contract  
receivables 

 and 
contract 

assets 
£000

 
All other  

receivables 
£000

Allowances as at 1 Apr 2019 - brought forward

Impact of implementing IFRS 9 (and IFRS 15)  

on 1 April 2018

Transfers by absorption

New allowances arising

Changes in existing allowances

Reversals of allowances

Utilisation of allowances (write offs)

Changes arising following modification of  

contractual cash flows

Foreign exchange and other changes

1,134  

- 

311 

- 

(66)

(50)

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

- 

1,098 

- 

446 

- 

(266)

(144)

- 

- 

1,098

 

(1,098)

- 

- 

- 

- 

-

 

- 

- 

Allowances as at 31 Mar 2020 1,329 - 1,134  -       

North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust does not impair all outstanding debts, even if they are past their due date.  
These debtors undergo a detailed review resulting in an impairment assessment being made of those not likely to result  
in settlement, following implementation of, and adherence to, the Trust’s credit control process. This could involve the  
use of debt collection agencies and/or pursuing debts via court proceedings if the Trust feels these are appropriate 
avenues to enable it to recover legitimate and enforceable monies due to it, thereby enabling reinvestment in the 
provision of healthcare.
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Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, in hand and cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are readily convertible 
investments of known value which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

NOTE 17 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE 
AND ASSETS IN DISPOSAL GROUPS

NOTE 18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
MOVEMENTS

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal groups at 1 April

Assets classified as available for sale in the year

- 

407

-

- 

NBV of non-current assets for sale and assets in disposal groups at 31 March 407 -

Trust held £293.24 cash and cash equivalents at 31 March 2020 (£1,386 at 31 March 2019) which relate to monies held 
by the Trust on behalf of patients or other parties and in which the Trust has no beneficial interest. This has been excluded 
from the cash and cash equivalents figure reported in the accounts.

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

At 1 April

Net change in year

5,894 

27,189   

3,486 

2,408  

At 31 March 33,083 5,894        

Broken down into:

Cash with the Government Banking Service

 

33,083 

 

5,894 

Total cash and cash equivalents as in SoFP and SoCF 33,083 5,894 

Note 18.1 Third party assets held by the Trust
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NOTE 19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Other payables include outstanding pension contributions of £3,834k at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019 £3,445k).

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Current

Trade payables

Capital payables

Accruals

Social security costs

VAT payables

Other taxes payable

Other payables

 

18,828 

2,228 

8,711 

6,189 

292 

113 

3,834   

14,836 

2,151 

7,389 

5,641 

379 

91 

3,445   

Total current trade and other payables 40,195 33,932  

Non-current

Accruals

 

119 92 

Total non-current trade and other payables 119 92 

Of which payables from NHS and DHSC group bodies: 

Current

 

9,750  

 

9,681 

NOTE 20 OTHER LIABILITIES

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Current

Deferred income: contract liabilities

 

3,222   

 

3,369   

Total other current liabilities 3,222  3,369  

Non-current

Deferred income: contract liabilities

 

413 

 

493 

Total other non-current liabilities 413 493  
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NOTE 21 BORROWINGS

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Current

Loans from DHSC

Other loans

Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession contracts

 

269,053 

- 

622 

10,958     

 

85,678 

- 

599 

10,671    

Total current borrowings 280,633 96,948   

Non-current

Loans from DHSC

Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT or other service concession contracts

 

2,140 

520 

327,365   

 

133,610 

1,113 

338,323  

Total non-current borrowings 330,025 473,046 

Note 21.1 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - 2019-20

Note 21.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities - 2018-19

Loans from 
DHSC 
£000

Other 
loans 
£000

Finance 
leases 
£000

PFI and LIFT 
schemes 

£000

 
Total 
£000

Carrying value at 1 April 2019 219,288 - 1,712 348,994 569,994 

Cash movements:

Financing cash flows - payments and  

receipts of principal

Financing cash flows - payments of interest

 

51,846 

(3,571)

 

-

 

-  

(570)

(88) 

(10,671)

(9,791) 

 

40,605  

 

(13,450)

Non-cash movements:

Application of effective interest rate

 

3,630 

 

- 

 

88 

 

9,791 

 

13,509 

Carrying value at 31 March 2020 271,193 - 1,142 338,323 610,658 

Loans from 
DHSC 
£000

Other 
loans 
£000

Finance 
leases 
£000

PFI and LIFT 
schemes 

£000

 
Total 
£000

Carrying value at 1 April 2018 174,026 597 2,232 359,443 536,298 

Cash movements:

Financing cash flows - payments and  

receipts of principal

Financing cash flows - payments of interest

 

44,589 

 

(2,854)

 

(597)

 

-  

 

(520)

 

(107) 

 

(10,450)

 

(10,166) 

 

33,022 

 

(13,127) 

Non-cash movements:

Impact of implementing IFRS 9 on  

1 April 2018

Application of effective interest rate

Other changes

 

 

540 

2,985 

2

 

 

- 

- 

- 

- 

107  

-  

 

- 

10,167 

- 

 

 

540 

13,259 

2 

Carrying value at 31 March 2019 219,288 - 1,712 348,994 569,994 
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NOTE 22 NORTH WEST ANGLIA NHS 
FOUNDATION TRUST AS A LESSEE

Other provisions include an amount of £0k (£80k at 31 March 2019) with regards to a cost for the Trust’s Carbon 
Reduction Commitment.

NOTE 23 PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES  
AND CHARGES ANALYSIS 

Obligations under finance leases where the Trust is the lessee.

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Gross lease liabilities

of which liabilities are due:

- not later than one year;

- later than one year and not later than five years;

- later than five years.

Finance charges allocated to future periods 

1,195   

 

673 

522 

- 

(53)

1,835  

 

678 

1,157 

- 

(123)

Net lease liabilities 1,142 1,712  

of which payable:

- not later than one year;

- later than one year and not later than five years;

- later than five years.

622 

520 

-  

599 

1,113 

- 

Pensions: 
early  

departure 
costs 
£000

 
Pensions: 

injury  
benefits* 

£000

 

Redundancy 
£000

Other 
£000

 

Total 
£000

At 1 April 2019

Arising during the year 

Utilised during the year

Reversed unused 

643 

86 

(73)

(24) 

1,670 

229 

(100)

(52)   

- 

226 

(226)

-   

222 

293 

(116)

(5) 

2,535 

834 

(515)

(81)  

At 31 March 2020 632 1,747 - 394 2,773 

Expected timing of cash flows: 

- not later than one year;

- later than one year and not later  

  than five years;

- later than five years.

 

83 

 

549 

-   

 

263 

 

1,484 

-   

 

- 

 

-  

-  

 

357 

 

- 

37   

 

703 

 

2,033 

37   

Total 632 1,747 - 394 2,773 

At 31 March 2020, £185,083k was included in provisions of NHS Resolution in respect of clinical negligence liabilities of 
North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust  (31 March 2019: £176,714k).

Note 23.1 Clinical negligence liabilities
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NOTE 24 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The Department for Health and Social Care have confirmed that providers do not need to make a provision in the 2019-
20 account in respect of the Flowers versus East of England Ambulance Case, in relation to costs of overtime  
being taken into account in calculation of the holiday pay. North West Anglia NHS FT have taken the decison not to 
make a provision for this in the accounts due to the East of England Ambulance Service NHS Trust’s decision to seek 
leave in order to launch their appeal to the Supreme Court. This is not included in the account as a provision due to its 
unquantifiable nature.

At 31 March there are a number of outstanding employment legal claims. The Trust assessed the claims, individually  
and collectively, during the preparation of the accounts. The claims are each at different stages with the Trust supported 
by external legal counsel where required. The Trust does not consider a provision is required as the claims are not 
considered to be sufficiently advanced, nor the outcome quantifiable, to require disclosure in the financial statements. 

The Trust has two Private Finance Initiatives (PFI).

The Treatment centre on the Hinchingbrooke site contract commenced on 18 March 2004 and was made available  
for use on 22 August 2010. The contract confers on the Trust the right to use the facility for designated purposes.  
The concession period will end on 21 August 2035 when the facility will revert to the Trust with a minimum asset life  
of five years. Early termination is subject to approval and compensation.

Peterborough City Hospital contract was agreed on 4 July 2007 for the construction of a new 611 bed hospital and the 
provision of hospital related services. The new hospital was handed over to the Trust on 2 October 2010. The PFI contract 
ends in November 2042. The Trust has the right to use the Hospital up to that date. On that date ownership reverts back 
to Trust. The current contract does not provide an option for extension or early termination.

Both schemes are deemed to be On Statement of Financial Position under IFRIC 12, meaning that they are treated as 
assets of the Trust, being acquired through a finance lease. The payments for the contracts have been analysed into 
finance lease charges and service charges. The accounting treatment of the PFI schemes are detailed in the accounting 
policies note.

The service element of the Peterborough City Hospital contract was £22,297k (2018-19 £21,935k) with contingent rent 
amounting to £6,497k (2018-19 £5,657k).  

The service element of the Treatment Centre contract was £2,143k (2018-19 £1,802k) with contingent rent amounting to 
£671k (2018-19 £644k).

NOTE 25 CONTRACTUAL CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

NOTE 26 ON-SOFP PFI, LIFT OR OTHER SERVICE 
CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Property, plant and equipment 6,808   3,052   

Total 6,808 3,052 
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The following obligations in respect of the PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangements are recognised in the 
statement of financial position:

Total future commitments under these on-SoFP schemes are as follows:

Note 26.1 On-SoFP PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangement obligations

Note 26.2 Total on-SoFP PFI, LIFT and other service concession  
arrangement commitments

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Gross PFI, LIFT or other service concession liabilities 756,261    778,894   

Of which liabilities are due

- not later than one year;

- later than one year and not later than five years;

- later than five years.

Finance charges allocated to future periods  

 

27,473 

115,557 

613,231  

(417,938)

 

26,837 

112,704 

639,353 

(429,900)

Net PFI, LIFT or other service concession arrangement obligation 338,323 348,994   

- not later than one year;

- later than one year and not later than five years;

- later than five years.

10,958 

47,547 

279,818   

10,671 

46,076 

292,247  

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

Total future payments committed in respect of the PFI, LIFT or  

other service concession arrangements
1,520,170  1,565,985  

Of which liabilities are due

- not later than one year;

- later than one year and not later than five years;

- later than five years.

 

55,843 

234,409 

1,229,918 

 

54,493 

228,305 

1,283,187  

This note provides an analysis of the unitary payments made to the service concession operator:

Note 26.3 Analysis of amounts payable to service concession operator

2019-20 
£000

2018-19 
£000

Unitary payment payable to service concession operator 58,237 56,261

Consisting of:

- Interest charge

- Repayment of finance lease liability

- Service element and other charges to operating expenditure

- Contingent rent

- Addition to lifecycle prepayment

 

9,791 

10,671 

24,440 

7,169 

6,166 

 

10,167 

10,447 

23,924 

6,301 

5,422

Total amount paid to service concession operator 58,237 56,261
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NOTE 27 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 7 requires disclosure of the role that financial instruments have had 
during the period in creating or changing the risks an entity faces in undertaking its activities. Financial instruments play a 
much more limited role in creating or changing risk within the NHS than would be typical of commercial business entities. 
The Trust has limited powers to borrow or invest surplus funds. Financial assets and liabilities are generated by day-to-day 
operational activities rather than being held to change the risks facing the Trust in undertaking its activities.  

Credit risk
Due to the continuing service provider relationship that 
the Trust has with local Clinical Commissioning Groups 
(CCGs) and the way those CCGs are financed, the Trust 
is not exposed to the same degree of credit risk faced 
by some entities. Those items in dispute or under query 
have been assessed and a provision for impairment 
made, if deemed appropriate. Totals are included in the 
trade and other receivables in note 16.  

Liquidity risk
The Trust’s net operating costs are incurred mainly 
in respect of delivering on legally-binding long term 
contracts with CCGs. CCGs themselves are financed 
by resources voted annually by Parliament. As noted 
above, this means that the Trust is not exposed to quite 
the same level of risk as some other business entities, 
but as has been evidenced during the year, if the Trust 
experiences liquidity issues, provided certain criteria can 
be evidenced, Department of Health and Social Care 
funding (not categorised as a Financial Instrument) may 
become eligible for drawdown to ensure the Trust can 
continue to meet its liabilities as they fall due. As noted 
in the ‘Going Concern’ disclosure in note 1, the Board 
has reasonable expectation that the Trust will have access 
to adequate resources in the next 12 months.

Market risk
The Trust has borrowed from the government for capital 
expenditure and revenue support, subject to affordability 
as confirmed by NHS Improvement. The borrowings are 
for 1–25 years, in line with the life of the associated 
assets or agreed repayment terms, and interest is 
charged at the National Loans Fund rate, fixed for the 
life of the loan. The Trust therefore has low exposure to 
interest rate fluctuations.

Foreign currency risk
The Trust is principally a domestic organisation with the 
great majority of transactions, assets and liabilities being 
in the UK and sterling based. The Trust has no overseas 
operations and therefore has low exposure to currency 
rate fluctuations.						    
		

Note 27.1 Financial risk management

Note 27.2 Carrying values of financial assets

Held at 
amortised 

cost 
£000

 
Total book 

value 
£000

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2020

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets

Other investments / financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

 

31,566 

- 

33,083   

 

31,566 

- 

33,083   

Total at 31 March 2020 64,649 64,649 

Held at 
amortised 

cost  
£000

Total book 
value 
£000

Carrying values of financial assets as at 31 March 2019

Trade and other receivables excluding non financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

 

24,550 

5,894    

 

24,550 

5,894    

Total at 31 March 2019 30,444 30,444 
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Note 27.3 Carrying values of financial liabilities

Held at 
amortised 

cost  
£000

 
Total book 

value 
£000

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2020

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care

Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 

Other borrowings

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities

Provisions under contract

 

271,193 

1,142 

338,323 

- 

29,562 

- 

-     

 

271,193 

1,142 

338,323 

- 

29,562 

- 

-     

Total at 31 March 2020 640,220 640,220 

Held at 
amortised 

cost  
£000

 
Total book 

value 
£000

Carrying values of financial liabilities as at 31 March 2019

Loans from the Department of Health and Social Care

Obligations under finance leases

Obligations under PFI, LIFT and other service concession contracts 

Other borrowings

Trade and other payables excluding non financial liabilities 

Other financial liabilities

Provisions under contract

 

219,288 

1,712 

348,994 

- 

21,882 

- 

-    

 

219,288 

1,712 

348,994 

- 

21,882 

- 

-    

Total at 31 March 2019 591,876   591,876  

Note 27.4 Maturity of financial liabilities

31 March 
2020 
£000

31 March 
2019 
£000

In one year or less

In more than one year but not more than two years

In more than two years but not more than five years

In more than five years

290,652 

31,484 

36,726 

281,358   

105,165 

92,729 

88,932 

305,050  

Total 640,220 591,876
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NOTE 28 LOSSES AND SPECIAL PAYMENTS

NOTE 29 RELATED PARTIES

2019-20 2018-19

Total 
number of 

cases 
 Number

Total  
value of 

cases 
£000

Total  
number of 

cases 
 Number

Total  
value of 

cases 
£000

Losses

Cash losses

Bad debts and claims abandoned

Stores losses and damage to property

 

57 

100 

1  

 

(1) 

142 

-

 

58 

107 

1 

 

(1) 

181 

(20) 

Total losses 158 141 166   160 

Special payments

Compensation under court order or legally binding  

arbitration award

Ex-gratia payments

 

 

6 

24 

 

 

- 

46

 

 

5 

35

 

 

- 

45

Total special payments 30 46 40 45 

Total losses and special payments

Compensation payments received

188  187 

- 

206  205 

-

During the year none of the Trust Board members, members of the key management staff, or parties related to any of 
them, have undertaken any material transactions with North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust.

The Department of Health and Social Care is regarded as a related party. During the year the Trust has had a significant 
number of material transactions with the Department, and with other entities for which the Department is regarded as 
the parent. These include:

•	 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG

•	 NHS England

•	 East Leicestershire and Rutland CCG

•	 Lincolnshire East CCG

•	 South Lincolnshire CCG

•	 South West Lincolnshire CCG

•	 Bedfordshire CCG

•	 Cambridge Community Services

•	 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHSFT

•	 Cambridge University Hospitals NHSFT

•	 University Hospitals of Leicester NHST

•	 NHS Resolution

•	 Public Health England

•	 NHS Blood and Transplant

•	 Health Education England
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NOTE 30 CHARITABLE FUNDS CONSOLIDATION

NOTE 31 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The Foundation Trust is the Corporate Trustee to North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust Charitable Fund. The 
Foundation Trust has assessed its relationship to the charitable fund and determined it to be a subsidiary because the 
Foundation Trust has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the charitable fund so as to obtain 
benefits from its activities.

The Trust Board believe that the transactions involving the charitable fund are not material to the Foundation Trust 
accounts and have chosen not to consolidate the accounts on this basis.

At the time of preparation, the Trust had not been notified or become aware of any significant events which  
require disclosure.

During March 2020, Covid was declared a pandemic on 12 March 2020 and the UK government made announcements 
about how the population should act as a result before the end of March 2020. These accounts include known costs 
incurred and reimbursed income resultant up to 31 March 2020.

As part of the NHS response and to enable focus upon support clinical delivery, standard inter-NHS contractual 
arrangements for 2020-21 were postponed and replaced with block payment arrangements based on 2019-20 
in-year performance and monitoring.

On 2 April 2020, the Department of Health and Social Care (DHSC) and NHS England and NHS Improvement announced 
reforms to the NHS cash regime for the 2020-21 financial year. During 2020-21 existing DHSC interim revenue and  
capital loans as at 31 March 2020 will be extinguished and replaced with the issue of Public Dividend Capital (PDC) 
to allow the repayment. Given this relates to liabilities that existed at 31 March 2020, DHSC has updated its Group 
Accounting Manual to advise this is considered an adjusting event after the reporting period for providers. Outstanding 
interim loans totalling £269.1m as at 31 March 2020 in these financial statements have been classified as current as  
they will be repayable within 12 months.

The financial statements were authorised for issue on 22 June 2020 by Mrs Caroline Walker, Chief Executive of North 
West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust.

50



51



ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS        

2019-20

A
N

N
U

A
L R

EPO
R

T A
N

D
 A

C
C

O
U

N
TS - 2

0
1
9
-2

0

North West Anglia NHS Foundation Trust 
Peterborough City Hospital, Edith Cavell Campus Bretton Gate, Peterborough, PE3 9GZ 
Telephone: 01733 678000




